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MONROE COUNTY 
HUMAN SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 

Application for Funding 
Fiscal Year 2018 

October 1, – September 30,

Agency Name 

Physical Address 

Mailing Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone 

Fax 

Email 

Whom should we contact with questions 
about this application? 

Amount received for prior fiscal year 
ending 09/30/18 $ 

Amount received for current fiscal year 
ending 09/30/19 $ 

Amount requested for upcoming fiscal year 
ending 09/30/20 $ 

For Fiscal Year              , specifically how will the amount requested be utilized? 
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COVER LETTER (REQUIRED) 

PART I:  Provide a brief overview of your organization.   
PART II:  Indicate any change in organizational structure specific to services or method of providing services.  
The intent is to inform the HSAB of any consolidating, combining, or merging with other agencies to avoid 
duplication of services.
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1.  Who prepared your application?  
             Application was prepared by an internal source(s)
             Application was prepared by an external source(s)
             Preparation of the application was a collaborative effort with an external source.
             Other (explain):  _________________________________________________________  
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2.  Please list below any overlap, common associations, common services, working relationships or sub- 
     contractor relationships with any other organizations i.e., board members, personnel or shared services.
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3.  Describe any networking arrangements that are in place with other agencies.
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4.  What unique role in the community does the proposed program fulfill that no one else does?
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5. Insert your agency’s board-approved mission statement only.

6. List the services your agency provides.

7. What specific services will be funded by this request?
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9.  Will County HSAB funds be used as match for a grant?    Yes  No

10. If your organization was awarded HSAB funds in FY 2019, please briefly and specifically explain:

a. How have the 2019 HSAB funds been spent?

b. Were all HSAB funds awarded in FY 2018 spent? Will all HSAB funds awarded in FY 2019 be spent?
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8. Have you previously been funded by HSAB?  Yes  No
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11.  Have you experienced any changes specific to:

a. Mission Statement. Yes No

b. Goals. Yes No

c. Expansion or contraction of services, staff or location. Yes No

d. How prior year funds were spent. Yes No 
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c.  Were HSAB funds used to leverage additional funding in FY 2019 and if so how?

d. How much additional funding was received?

e. How was the additional funding spent?



14.  Does your organization allocate sub-grants to other organizations using other (non-County) sources

of funding?    Yes         No

Please include these on the Agency Expenses form, under “Grants to Other Organizations.”

15.  N   Will you or have you applied for other sources of County funding?  Yes
  Please include these on the Agency Revenue form.

13.  Do you plan to allocate any part of this HSAB grant, if awarded, as a sub-grant to another organization?
Yes           No

Please include these on the County HSAB Funding Budget form under “Grants to Other Organizations.”
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12.  Did your agency lose any funding, or partial funding in 2019?   Yes No
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16. What needs or problems in this community does your agency address?

17.

18.



19. Describe your target population as specifically as possible.

20. How are clients referred to your agency?

21. What steps are taken to ensure prospective clients are eligible and the neediest clients are given priority?

22. List all sites and hours of operation.  Please note which of these sites will be using HSAB funding.

23.
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24.

25. How are clients represented in the operation of your agency?

26.

27. _______ hours of program service were contributed by ________ volunteers in the last year.

28. Will any services funded by the County HSAB award be performed under subcontract by another agency?  If so, 
what services, and who will perform them?

29. What measurable outcomes do you plan to accomplish in the next funding year?
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What organizational challenges do you expect in the next two years, and how do you plan to respond to them?
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32. Address any topics not covered above (optional).

30.
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Name/Board Position Affiliation/Title City/State Telephone No. Years Served
Current Term 

Expiration Date

BOARD INFORMATION
You must have at least five directors
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Include each position in the entire agenc 
Put an "✓" next to each position directly related to program for which funding is requested.
A 40-hour/week employee would be 1.00 FTE; a 20-hour/week employee would be .5 FTE, etc.

Indicate whether the position is programmatic or administrative, with a "P" or "A" next to that position.

Position Title "✓" # FTE'S Salaries
Benefits 

Package* # FTE'S Salaries
Benefits 

Package* "P" or "A"

Totals

Please list benefits included:

AGENCY COMPENSATION DETAIL

___/___/_____

Proposed - Upcoming Year 
Ending:

Total Compensation Total Compensation

Projected - Current Year 
Ending:

___/___/_____
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List Services Here Target Population
# of Persons in 
Target Population

Area Days/Hours
Total Number of Clients Served 
during most recent completed 

fiscal year

Current # of Clients 
("snapshot") as of 
_____/_____/_____

**SAMPLE SERVICE 1** homeless adults with no support from family or friends 800 county-wide 7 days/24 hours 200 75
**SAMPLE SERVICE 2** mentally ill minors and adults 2,000 Marathon 8 AM - 5 PM 100 65

Please list or describe achieved measurable outcomes for your target populations:

PROFILE OF CLIENTS, CLIENT NUMBERS AND SERVICES
(Performance Report)

Current number of unduplicated clients for the entire agency ("snapshot") as of  _____/_____/______

Total number of unduplicated clients for the entire agency served  during most recent completed fiscal year

How many clients served are Monroe County residents:

14

35.

Gunderson-Janet
Typewritten Text



Expenditures Total %

Salaries - Program

Payroll Taxes - Program

Employee Benefits  - Program

Salaries - Administrative

Payroll Taxes - Administrative

Employee Benefits - Administrative

Subtotal Personnel

Postage

Office Supplies

Telephone

Professional Fees

Rent

Utilities

Repair and Maint.

Travel

Miscellaneous

Grants to Other Organizations

List others below

Total Expenses

COUNTY HSAB FUNDING BUDGET
Show the proposed budget detail for the County HSAB funds requested. 

Total Expenses must equal Amount Requested on page 1.

Proposed County Funded Expense 
Budget for Upcoming Year Ending: 

_____/_____/_____
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Expenditures Total % Total %

Salaries - Program

Payroll Taxes - Program

Employee Benefits - Program

Salaries - Administrative

Payroll Taxes - Administrative

Employee Benefits - Administrative

Subtotal Personnel

Postage

Office Supplies

Telephone

Professional Fees

Rent

Utilities

Repair and Maint.

Travel

Miscellaneous

Grants to Other Organizations

List others below

Total Expenses

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenses

_____/_____/_____ _____/_____/_____

Proposed Expense Budget for 
Upcoming Year Ending:

Projected Expenses for Current 
Year Ending:

AGENCY EXPENSES

Complete this worksheet for the entire agency.

6
6
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FOUNDATION:

FEDERAL:

AGENCY REVENUE

Complete this worksheet for the entire agency. In-Kind will not be included in percentages.

Revenue Sources Cash In-Kind % Cash In-Kind %

ALL OTHER SOURCES:

Total Revenue

____/____/_____ ____/____/____

Proposed Revenue Budget for Upcoming 
Year Ending:

Projected Revenue for Current Year 
Ending:

LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

STATE:
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39.  What is the current number of employees, full-time and part-time, on the payroll for the entire 
     organization? 
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40.  Please list the positions, if any, within your organization that are currently vacant and explain why
        each position is vacant.
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Item Help ATTACHMENT TITLE ATTACHMENT COMMENTS

YES NO IF NOT ATTACHED,PLEASE EXPLAIN

EX SAMPLE ITEM WITH  ATTACHMENT

EX SAMPLE ITEM WITHOUT  ATTACHMENT

A Evidence of Annual Election of Officers

B Unqualified Audited Financial Statement* or Statement of Functional Expenses

C Copy of submitted IRS Form 990 for most recent fiscal year (2016).

D Copy of current fee schedule

E Proof of Registration with Fl. Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services.

E.1 Proof of Exemption with Fl. Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services.

F Copy of IRS Letter of Determination indicating 501 C 3 status

F.1 Copy of GUIDESTAR printout

G Copy of Personnel Manual for hiring policies, drug free workplace and EEO provisions.

H Copy of Florida Dept. of Children And Families License or Certification

I Copy of any other Federal or State Licenses

J Copy of Florida Dept. of Health Licenses/Permits

K Copy of Current Occupational Licenses

L Audit Documentation, for recipients of $100k + from Monroe County

M Copy of Organization's Corporate Bylaws

N Copy of Summary Report of most current Evaluation/Monitoring **

O Data showing need for your program

P Certification Page - Blank Page is available Here

Q Other - If additional space is needed to address earlier questions please label and include here.

ATTACHED

ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST

* If qualified, include a statement of deficiencies with corrective actions recommended/taken.

This does not apply to our org.

3
6

** Must include summary of deficiencies and suggested corrective action; may include your responses and actions taken.

39.


[bookmark: _GoBack]This Document Intentionally Left Blank.

Sample Attachment
File Attachment
Doc1.docx

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Attach evidence of annual election of officers (i.e., copy of minutes of meeting in which most recent elections took place.)

Monroe County
Sticky Note
A copy of your organization’s unqualified audited financial statement from the most recent fiscal year (2016) is required if your organization’s expenses are $150,000 or greater, or if you receive $100,000 or more from the County; if qualified, include a statement of deficiencies with corrective actions recommended/taken; If your organization’s expenses are less than $150,000, a Statement of Functional Expenses for the most recent fiscal year is required.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
For FY18, you should be submitting your 2016 IRS 990 Form.  If you do not have the 2016 year submitted, please state why in the comments field. If you have filed for an extension, please submit the extension letter with your 990.  The 990 form must be the copy that was filed with the IRS.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
A copy of your current fee schedule is required.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Proof of registration with the Florida Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services as required by Florida Statute 496.405.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Proof of filing documentation as required by Florida Statute 496.406 for exemption from registration or alternatively a sworn statement from the Organization’s representative confirming that it does not conduct solicitation activities.   Pursuant to F.S. 496.403, F.S. 496.405 does not apply to religious institutions, educational institutions and state agencies or other governmental entities and thus this requirement does not apply to those organizations. 

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Provide a copy of the actual IRS Letter of Determination indicating 501c3 status.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Please provide a current printout from GUIDESTAR that shows your organization has current 501c3 status. This can be a printed copy of the online screen.  Please be sure the printout indicates current status with the IRS. 

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Policy and Procedures Manual which must include hiring policies for all staff, drug and alcohol free workplace provisions, and equal employment opportunity provisions.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Provide a copy of the current bylaws.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
A copy of your most recent evaluation or monitoring report, including a summary of deficiencies and suggested corrective action; may include your responses and actions taken.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
This pertains to Question 12 of the application.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
You may also add an attachment of your choice, as Attachment Q. If you are providing additional information specific to a question please reference the question number.  No additional documents will be accepted after the application deadline

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Download the blank application from the paperclip next to the title. Fill out the form. Then attach it in the attachment column.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Provide a copy of current Monroe County and/or City Occupational Licenses.

Monroe County
Sticky Note

If you receive $100,000 or more in grant funding from the County an audit shall be prepared by an independent certified public accountant. The County shall be considered an ‘intended recipient’ of said audit. Attach the following:

1. A copy of a current, in good standing, State of Florida Board of Accountancy CPA license

2. A copy of a membership with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

3. A copy of malpractice insurance covering the audit services provided

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Provide a copy of current State or Federal licenses, permits or certifications.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Provide a copy of current State or Federal licenses, permits or certifications.

Monroe County
Sticky Note
Provide a copy of current State of Florida Department of Health licenses, permits or certifications.
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CERTIFICATION 
 
 


To the best of our knowledge and belief, the information contained in this application and attachments is 
true and correct. Monroe County is hereby authorized to verify all information contained herein, and we 
understand that any inaccuracies, omissions, or any other information found to be false may result in 
rejection of this application.  This certifies that this request for funding is consistent with our 
organization's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws and has been approved by a majority of the Board of 
Directors. 


 
We affirm that the Agency will use Monroe County funds for the purposes as submitted in this Application 
for Funding. Any change will require written approval from the Monroe County Board of County 
Commissioners. 


 
We understand that the agency must substantially meet the eligibility criteria to be considered for Monroe 
County funding and that any applicable attachments not included disqualify the agency's application. 


 
We understand that all funding received through this opportunity must be spent for the benefit of 
Monroe County. 


 
We further understand that meeting the Eligibility Criteria in no way ensures that the agency will be 
recommended for funding by the Human Services Advisory Board. These recommendations are 
determined by service needs of the community, availability of funds, etc. HSAB funding recommendations 
must be approved by the Monroe County Board of County Commissioners. 
 
We certify the number (“snapshot”) of active employees on payroll, identified on Q.39, is true and correct.   


 
 
 


 
Name of Executive Director 


 
 
 
 


Signature Date 
 
 
 
 
 


Witness Witness 
 
 
 
 


Name of Board President/Chairman 
 
 
 
 


Signature Date 
 
 
 
 
 


Witness Witness 
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Florida Keys AHEC


Board of Directors Meeting


@ AHEC Office, Marathon, Florida


May 23, 2018 - 12:00 PMMINUTES


Called to Order:  12:00 PM Time Adjourned:  1:00 PM 


FKAHEC Staff: Michael Cunningham, Shane Keween, Keith Harris


Board Members Present: James Cordell, Charles Neiditz, Michelle C, Mark Roby, Jack Bridges,


Britt Myers   


AGENDA ITEM REPORTS/DISCUSSION MOTION


Approval of Agenda Copies of the Agenda were sent prior to the meeting


Charles made a motion to accept the 


agenda as presented. Jack seconded and 


carried unanimously.


Election of Board Members 


(Renewals)
Renewal of Members with 5/18 Exp Date


Michelle made a motion to Renew board 


members. Charles seconded and carried 


unanimously.    


Election of Officers Election of officers for AHEC Board, Slate provided


Mark R made a motion to accept the Slate 


of Officers. Charles seconded and carried 


unanimously.


Concent Agenda Board Review/Accept Minutes and Tobacco & Federal Reports. 


Mark R made a motion to accept the 


Consent Agenda Items. Charles seconded 


and carried unanimously.


NEW / OLD BUSINESS   


I. Finances for FY 17/18 Michael gave an update on Expenses - reviewed the current financial reports
 


II. Draft Budget for FY 18/19 Michael reviewed the Draft Budget.  Discussed the Funding categories and 


programs.  Discussion of Grants and Contracts planned for this budget with board 


discussion/vote.  Reviewed Tobacco, Clinics, and other programs/funding.  Board 


voted on approval of draft budget


Jack made a motion to accept the Contract 


and Grants for 18/19 fiscal year, Charles 


2nd, passed unaniomously.                   Britt 


made a motion to approve the Draft budget 


for 18/19, Charles seconded and motion 


carried unaniomously.


III. Program Update Update provided on HSAB, Discussed memo from City Attorney and site review.  


Tobacco - discuss budget items, Federal - discussed Scholars program


 


IV. School Health Initiative plans 


for 18/19


Michael gave an update on School Health Programs, Blue Foundation, and growth 


plan for Dental Assesment and Sealant project for 18/19.


 


IV. Lobbyist Firm Discusson on Lobbyist Firm renewal - came in less than projected Charles made a motion to retain lobbyiest 


for 18/19. Mark R seconded and carried 


unanimously.


V. Other


Michael and board discussed reviewing By-laws, will have staff review 1st.  Update 


for Agency Work lan, Upcoming Summer Programs - summer camps, Audit to start 


in August with Buzzi - letter retained


 







Florida Keys AHEC


Board of Directors Meeting


@ AHEC Office, Marathon, Florida


May 23, 2018 - 12:00 PM


VI.  Adjournment
James Motions to adjourn, Charles 


seconded and passes unanimously.





Michael
File Attachment
BD Mtg Minutes May 23, 2018.pdf
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  


 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.: 
 
                     
Report on the Financial Statements 
                     
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Florida Keys 
Area Health Education, Inc. (a non-profit organization), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
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effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  
 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Florida Keys 
Area Health Education, Inc., as of June 30, 2018 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
financial statements taken as a whole.  The additional information on 
pages 17 to 24 as of June 30, 2018, including the Schedule of 
Expenditures of State Financial Assistance and Schedule of State 
Financial Assistance as required by Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor 
General of the State of Florida, and are presented for additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information to the underlying accounting 
records and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a 
report dated October 24, 2018 on our consideration of Florida Keys Area 
Health Education Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.   
 
 


 
 
October 24, 2018 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Statement of Financial Position 
 


June 30, 2018  
              
 
                             


 
 
                                                                                    
                                                      Temporarily    Permanently                                        
                                       Unrestricted    Restricted     Restricted   Total   
 
 
       ASSETS  
 
 
Current Assets: 
  Cash                                $  490,582         526,521         -       1,017,103   
  Accounts receivable – Grants           335,731            -            -         335,731     
  Accounts receivable –  
    Special Projects                        -               -            -            - 
  Funds held for others                   41,729            -            -          41,729 
  Other assets                             1,207            -            -           1,207 
  Other receivable                           378            -            -             378- 
 
    Total Current Assets                 869,627         526,521         -       1,396,148 
 
Investment in certificates of 
  deposit                                   -               -            -            - 
 
Plant, property and equipment          1,232,764            -         103,783    1,336,547 
Less: accumulated depreciation          (331,548)           -        (103,783)    (435,331) 
 
Plant, property and equipment, net       901,216            -            -         901,216 
Security deposits                          3,888            -            -           3,888 
 
 
    Total Assets                      $1,774,731         526,521         -       2,301,252 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 


 
 
Current Liabilities: 
  Funds held for others               $   41,729            -            -          41,729 
  Deferred income                          8,171            -            -           8,171   
  Current portion of long-term debt       15,595            -            -          15,595     
  Accrued compensated absences            68,695            -            -          68,695 
  Accounts payable and  
    other liabilities                     12,058            -            -          12,058  
 
    Total Current Liabilities            146,248            -            -         146,248 


 
 
 
Mortgages payable, non-current portion   286,255            -            -         286,255 
 
Net assets                             1,342,228         526,521         -       1,868,749 
 
 
    Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $1,774,731         526,521         -       2,301,252 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Statement of Activities 
 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
 
              
 
                           


                                                                                  
                                                      Temporarily    Permanently                                                       
                                       Unrestricted    Restricted     Restricted   Total   
 
 
 
SUPPORT, REVENUES AND 
 RECLASSIFICATION                    
   
 Grants: 
   University of Miami                $     -            440,235         -        440,235   
   State support/Grants and 
     Contracts                              -            250,000         -        250,000 
   Fundraising/Donations 
     and Other                              -            302,966         -        302,966 
   HRSA Grant Passed Through 
     University of Miami                    -             79,124         -         79,124 
   University of Miami – 
     Student Housing                        -             27,500         -         27,500 
   Other Grants                             -            280,137         -        280,137    
   Special projects                         -               -            -           -    
 Clinic fees – insurance                                 305,219         -        305,219 
 Interest income                           6,593            -            -          6,593 
 Other income                               -             18,823         -         18,823 
 Net Assets Released from 
   Restrictions: 
     Restrictions satisfied  
       by payments                     1,398,785      (1,398,785)        -           -___    
 
     Total Revenues                    1,405,378         305,219         -      1,710,597 
 
 
 
 
EXPENSES 
 
Program Services: 
  Training                             1,256,498            -            -      1,256,498 
 
     Total Program Services            1,256,498            -            -      1,256,498      
 
 
Support Services: 
  Management/Administration              101,850            -            -        101,850 
  Depreciation and amortization           32,723            -            -         32,723 
  
     Total Supporting services           134,573            -            -        134,573 
 
     Total Expenses                    1,391,071            -            -      1,391,071  
 
 
 
Change in Net Assets                      14,307         305,219         -        319,526      
 
 
Net Assets, beginning of year          1,327,921         221,302         -      1,549,223 
 
 
 
Net Assets, end of year               $1,342,228         526,521          -     1,868,749 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Statement of Functional Expenses 
 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2018  
 
 


                               
 
                                      Program     Management and                          
                                      Services    Administration      Total  - 
EXPENSES: 
Compensation and Related Expenses: 
  Employee Benefits                  $   67,678        5,845           73,523                  
  Payroll Taxes                          58,479          649           59,128                  
  Wages and Salaries                    710,444       61,358          771,802                                                
   
Total Compensation and Related 
  Expenses                              836,601       67,852          904,453         
  
Occupancy: 
  Insurance                              13,621          424           14,045                                    
  Interest                               14,475          761           15,236                                      
  Association fees                       13,297          700           13,997  
  Real estate taxes                       1,017           60            1,077 
  Rent expense                           14,125         -              14,125                    
  Telephone                              10,894          635           11,529                      
  Utilities and janitorial                6,047          341            6,388  
 
Total Occupancy                          73,476        2,921           76,397                                       
   
Administration: 
  Audit and Accounting                    5,750        2,250            8,000 
  Office Expenses                       105,549       28,648          134,197 
  Travel, Supplies and Meals             24,246          179           24,425 
 
Total Administration                    135,545       31,077          166,622  
 
Programs:                  
  Community Programs                     65,858         -              65,858  
  Continuing Education/program  
     specific                            46,939         -              46,939 
  Contracted Services                    73,237         -              73,237 
  Student Housing                        24,842         -              24,842  
 
Total Programs                          210,876         -   -         210,876 
 
Total Expenses before Depreciation    1,256,498      101,850        1,358,348 
 Depreciation                              -          32,120           32,120 
 Amortization                              -             603              603          
 
Total Expenses                       $1,256,498      134,573        1,391,071 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Statement of Cash Flows  
 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 


 
              
 
    
 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
   Cash received from Grants and Special                                     
     Project Revenues Collected                          $  1,494,730 
     Net assets released from restrictions:  
       Cash paid for management and administration           (101,850) 
       Cash paid for program services                      (1,349,477) 
 
           Net cash provided by operating        
             activities                                        43,403      
 
 
 
 
Cash flows from Investing Activities: 
  Additions to plant, property and equipment                     -   - 
   
           Net cash used by investing      
             activities                                          -   -      
 
 
 
 
Cash flows from Financing Activities: 
  Net repayments on mortgage payable                           (8,494) 
 
           Net cash used by financing     
             activities                                        (8,494)      
 
 
 
 
Net increase in cash                                           34,909  
         
Cash, at beginning of year                                    982,194  
        
 
 
Cash, at end of year                                       $1,017,103         
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
The accompanying notes are an integral part 


 of these Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 


 
Statement of Cash Flows  


 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 


 
 
 
 


 
              
 
    
 
Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets 
  to Net Cash provided by Operating  
  Activities 
    Change in Net Assets                                   $  319,526  
    Adjustments to reconcile change in                                    
      net assets to net cash provided by     
      operating activities: 
        Depreciation and amortization                          32,723 
         (Increase) decrease in assets: 
        Accounts receivables                                 (215,867) 
        Other assets/security deposits                          1,875  
      Increase (Decrease) in liabilities: 
        Payables and accrued expenses                         (94,854) 
 
           Net cash used by operating            
             activities                                    $   43,403       
 
 
 
 
 
Supplemental Data:                          
 
  Interest paid                                            $   15,236  
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part 
 of these Financial Statements. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018 
 
 
 


 
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 


(a)  Nature of Activities 
 


Florida Keys Area Health Education center, Inc. (the “Center”), 
a not for profit Corporation, was organized under the laws of 
the State of Florida on January 25, 1990 and received its 
recognition as an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  The Center’s objectives are to 
effectively promote health and wellness through education, 
health assessments and professional development using 
partnerships and other contract-funded services, resulting in a 
healthier and better educated community. 
 
 


   (b)  Basis of Presentation 
 
       The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the 


accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The financial statement 
presentation follows the requirements of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in its Accounting Standards 
Codification (“ASC”) No. 958 Not-for-Profit Entities. Under ASC 
No. 958, the Center is required to report information regarding 
its financial of position and activities to three classes of net 
assets as follows: 


 
 


• Unrestricted Net Assets – Net assets that are not 
subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 


 


• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets – Net assets subject 
to donor or center - imposed stipulations that may or 
will be met either by actions of the Center and/or the 
passage of time.  When a restriction expires; 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements 
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 


 


• Permanently Restricted Net Assets – Net assets subject 
to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
permanently by the Center.  Generally the donors of 
these assets permit the Center to use all or part of the 
income on any related investments for general or 
specific purposes. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018 
 
 
 
(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  - (Cont.) 
 
 


(c)   Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 


For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Center 
considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with 
maturity of three (3) months or less to be cash equivalents.  


 
(d)   Property and Equipment  


 
Fixed assets acquired by the Center are considered to be 
owned by the Center and stated at cost.  However State-
funding sources may maintain equitable interest in tangible 
assets purchased with grant monies as well as the right to 
determine the use of any proceeds from the sale of these 
assets.  The grant provider retains title in those assets 
purchased with its funds, which have a cost of $500 or more, 
and an estimated useful life of at least one year. 
 
The Center follows the practice of capitalizing, at cost, 
all expenditures for fixed assets in excess of $500.  
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the 
useful lives of the assets generally as follows: 
 
     Building                            39 years 
     Office equipment and furniture      3 to 10 years 
 
The net fixed asset amount has been recorded as a separate 
component in restricted net assets. 
 


 
(e)   Support and Revenue  


 
The Center receives its grant support primarily from the 
University of Miami (See Note 4).  Support received from 
those contracts is recognized when program expenses incurred 
are billed to the University of Miami.  Contract revenues 
presented in the statement of activities are principally 
cost reimbursement contracts and are stated at amounts 
equivalent to the program expenses incurred.  Program 
expenses incurred and billed that remain uncollected at June 
30, 2018 are reflected as accounts receivable – grants and 
special projects.  Contract receipts in advance of program 
expenses incurred are deferred and recognized as revenue in 
the period in which the matching program expenses are 
incurred.  The Center records revenue when earned.  All 
expenses are recorded on the accrual basis and are charged 
against operations when incurred. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018 
 
 
(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  - (Cont.) 
 


(f)   Estimates  
 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles require management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 


(g)   Functional Allocation of Expenses  
 


The cost of providing various programs and other activities 
has been summarized on a functional basis in the Statement 
of Activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the programs and supporting services 
benefited. 
 
 


(h)   Contributed Services / Donated Materials.  
 


No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements 
for contributed services inasmuch as there is no objective 
basis available to measure the value of such services.  
Donated material would be recorded at their fair market 
value.  There were no material donations. 
 
 


(i)   Income Tax Status  
 


The Internal Revenue Service has classified the Center as a 
publicly supported, tax-exempt organization under Sections 
501 (c)(3) and 170 (b) (1) (A) (VI) of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  Therefore, no provision is made for income taxes.  
There are no unrelated business activities subject to income 
taxes. The Center is subject to routine reviews of tax 
returns by taxing jurisdictions.  There are no current  
audits of open tax periods.  Tax years 2015, 2016 and 2017 
are open to audit. 
 


 
(j)   Compensated Absences  


 
The Center’s policy permits employees to accumulate a 
limited amount of earned but unused vacation and sick leave, 
which can be paid to the employee at appropriate times.  The 
total computed accrued liability at June 30, 2018 of $68,695 
has been accrued for compensated absences. 
 
 


(k)   Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts  
 


All accounts are considered collectible since they are on a 
cost reimbursement basis with the grantor agencies. 


 
 
 


-10- 
 







 


 
 
 


FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018  
 


 
(1)   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  - (Cont.) 


 
(l)   Long-Lived Assets  


 
 The Center reviews the carrying value of its long lived 


assets for possible impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the 
assets may not be recoverable. No adjustment has been 
provided for in the financial statements. Acquisitions over 
$500 are capitalized unless considered repairs for existing 
long lived assets.  


 
(m)   Contingencies 
 


Financial awards from federal, state and local government 
entities in the form of grants are subject to audit by the 
respective governmental agencies. The possible disallowance 
by the governmental agencies of any item charged to the 
program or request for the return of any unexpended funds 
cannot be determined at this time. Accordingly, no provision 
for any liability that may result has been made in the 
financial statements. 
 


(n)   Economic Dependence 
 
The Center provides its program services with funds 
primarily received from federal, state and local 
governments.  A significant reduction in the level of this 
funding, if this were to occur, may have an adverse effect 
on the Center’s programs and activities. 


 
 
(2)   Components of Program and Supporting Services 
 


The Center allocated its expenses on a functional basis among the 
following programs and support services.  Expenses that can be 
identified with a specific program and support service are 
allocated directly according to their natural expenditure 
classification.  Other expenses that are common to several 
functions are allocated by various statistical basis. 
 
(a)   Training  


 
Training experience in community based settings in 
underserved areas. 
 


(b)   Management and Administration  
 
Management and administration includes the functions 
necessary to maintain an equitable employment program; 
ensure an adequate working environment; provide coordination 
and articulation of the Center’s program strategy; secure 
proper administrative functioning of the Board of Directors; 
maintain competent legal services for the program financial 
and budgetary responsibility of the Center.  See Statement 
of Functional Expenses. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018  
 


 
 


 
(3)   Property and Equipment 
 


A summary of major classes of depreciable property follows: 
         
 
              Estimated 
             Useful Lives  Original   Depreciation  Accumulated       Net 
              In Years      Costs       Expense     Depreciation     Value 
 
 
Building       39 years  $1,227,603      31,477       329,298        898,305 
 
Equipment    3–10 years      92,197         643        89,286          2,911 
 
Furniture and 
  Fixtures      7 years      16,747        -           16,747           -   - 
 
                         $1,336,547      32,120       435,331        901,216 
 
 
 


Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures are subject to Grantor approval 
prior to disposal.  For 2018, disposals amounted to $0. 
 
 
 


 
(4)   University of Miami Grant/Special Project Revenues 
 


 
 


(a)   University of Miami Grant  
 
The University of Miami supports the Florida Keys Area 
Health Education Center, Inc. through grants from federal 
and state funds received by them for that purpose.  This is 
the major funding source for the Center.  For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018, the grants were administered by 
cost reimbursement. 
 
 


(b)   Community Health Program Revenue  
 
Various institutions or agencies for various presentations 
such as cardiovascular disease, osteoporosis, cancer 
prevention, medical reserve corp and healthy aging education 
and direct medical service programs and projects. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018  
 
 
(5)   Cash 
 


Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 
 
    Petty cash                    $      500 
    Checking – Operating             596,658 
    Fixed Income Securities          419,945 
    Cash – Sweep Account                -   - 
 
                                  $1,017,103  
 


(6)   Mortgages Payable 
 


At June 30, 2018, the Center had a mortgage payable to a bank 
totaling $301,850.  The mortgage is payable in monthly 
installments of $2,008.48, including interest and is secured by 
the Center’s office building.  Interest accrues at 5.25% at June 
30, 2018.  Maturities are as follows: 
 
      Fiscal year ending June 30,  


 
2019                          $  15,595 
2020     17,982 
2021         268,273 
 


                    Total                    $ 301,850         
 
 
(7)   Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 
 
 At June 30, 2018 a total of $526,521 is designated for school 


clinic budget needs of fiscal 2019 and beyond.  The Center bills 
insurance, where available, for clinic services and sets aside 
those funds as designated for clinic costs. Surpluses are 
designated for following year costs of the clinic not covered by 
operations. 


 
 
(8)   Contingencies 
 


 
(a)   Grant  


 
The Center has ongoing agreements with the University of 
Miami, as a subcontractor for State and Federal grants.  
Grant monies received and disbursed by the Center are for 
general purposes within budgetary guidelines and are subject 
to audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audits may result in 
requests for reimbursements due to disallowed expenditures.  
Based upon prior experience, the Center does not believe 
that such disallowances, if any, would have a material 
effect on the financial position of the center. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018 
 


 
(9)   Lease Commitments 
 


The Center leases two (2) houses for student housing under annual 
operating leases and two (2) temporary office spaces. 
 
The properties leased and the current rent, as of June 30, 2018, 
is as follows: 
       
                        Monthly Rent           Annual Rent 
 
Key West                  $ 1,200                $ 14,125  
 
                          $ 1,200                $ 14,125  
 
   
On January 31, 2007, the Center acquired a copier under an 
operating lease agreement which expired in January 2012 and was 
maintained on a month to month basis through October 2012. In 
November 2012, the Center entered into a 5 year lease for a new 
copier.  The monthly payment for the new lease amounts to $200 
plus taxes. Rental expense on the equipment leases amounted to 
$4,025 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 
 


 
 
 
 
(10)   Concentrations of Credit Risk 
    


(a)    Grant Funding  
 
Currently, the Center receives funding through the 
University of Miami and other private/public sources which 
may or may not be dependent upon state funds. 
 


 
 
(b)    Cash  


 
The Center maintains accounts at several local financial 
institutions. During the year the accounts did not exceed 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits of 
$250,000. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 


 
Notes to Financial Statements 


 
June 30, 2018 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
(11)  Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
 


The Center’s financial instruments include cash and cash 
equivalents.  The Center estimates that the fair value of all 
financial instruments at June 30, 2018, does not differ materially 
from the aggregate carrying value of its financial instruments 
recorded in the accompanying statement of financial position. 
 
The estimated fair values have been determined using available 
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies.  The 
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents in the statements of 
financial position approximate far values because of the short 
maturities of these instruments.  Fair value approximates carrying 
value of the capital lease obligation since stated rates are 
similar to rates currently available to the center for a lease 
with similar terms and remaining maturity. 
 
 


 
(12)   SEP Plan/Deferred Compensation Plan 
 


 
(a)    SEP Plan  


 
After one year of service, the Center’s personnel are 
covered by a Simplified Employee Plan (SEP) plan for up to 
a maximum of 7% of their compensation.  The plans are self-
directed by the employees participating and at the end of 
the fiscal year there were five (5) eligible employees.  
Contributions made during 2018 for the participants were 
$22,447. 
 
 


(b)    Deferred Compensation Plan  
 
A voluntary deferred compensation plan is available to all 
employees.  Contributions up to 20% of compensation can be 
made up to a maximum of $12,000.  To date no employees are 
participating. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Financial Statements 
 


June 30, 2018  
 


 
 


      
 


(13)   Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 24, 
2018, the date at which the financial statements were available 
for issue and does not believe that there are any subsequent 
events that require adjustment or disclosure in the accompanying 
financial statements. 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Schedule of Expenditures of Federal/State Financial Assistance 
 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 
 


  
                                                          Grant ID#                                  
                          Program Title                  CFDA/ CSFA #  __    Expenditure                                               


                  


    Florida Department of Health –      93.107    79,124 
    Passed through University of  
    Miami (**) HRSA Grant               


    Florida Department of Health (*)            64.132        250,000 
     


    U.S. Department of Health & Human           93.332   73,587 
    Services passed through University 


Of South Florida; Navigator Grant(**) 


                                                                                                   
                    Florida Department of Health -           93.889/COP4G           25,000    
                    Medical Reserve Corp(**) 


                                                                                                              
                    Florida Department of Health -           64.097/COTFT          339,310      


              Passed through University of Miami-  
              Tobacco Cessation Grant(*)              


             


                   Florida Department of Health -           64.112/COTFT          100,925 
              Passed through University of Miami-  


                    Tobacco Training Grant 
                                   
                        Total Awards                                           $   867,946                           


  (*) Major State Program   
 


  (**) Originated from Federal Funding 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 
 


Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State  
Financial Assistance 


 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


(1) Summary of significant Accounting Policies 
 


The accounting policies and presentation of the grants 
compliance report of the Center have been designed to conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Sates of 
America applicable to non-profit organizations, including the 
reporting and compliance requirements of the Chapter 10.650 
Rules of the Auditor General and Section 215.97 of the Florida 
Statutes of the Florida Single Audit Act. 
 
Reporting Entity: -- Chapter 10.650 Rules of the Auditor General 
and Section 215.97 of the Florida Statutes of the Florida Single 
Audit Act set forth the audit and reporting requirements for 
Federal and State awards.  The Center has included a Schedule of 
Expenditures of State Financial Assistance to satisfy the audit 
requirements of the Government Grantor Agencies. 
 
Basis of Accounting – Basis of Accounting refers to when 
revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements, and to the 
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement 
focus applied.  Revenue from cost reimbursement contracts are 
recognized as program expenses are incurred.  Revenue from unit 
costs contracts are recognized based on the units of service 
delivered. 
 
 
 


(2) Contingencies 
 


Grant monies received and disbursed by the Center are for 
specific purposes and are subject to review by the grantor 
agencies.  Such audits may result in request for reimbursement 
due to disallowed expenditures. Based on prior experience, 
management of the Center does not believe that such 
disallowance, if any, would have a material effect on the 
financial position of the Center.  As of October 24, 2018 there 
were no material questioned or disallowed costs as a result of 
grant audits in process or completed. 
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SMITH, BUZZI  & ASSOCIATES,  LLC. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 


9425 SUNSET DRIVE, SUITE 180 


MIAMI, FLORIDA 33173 


TEL. (305) 598-6701 


FAX (305) 598-6716 
 


 


JULIO M. BUZZI, C.P.A.                                                                                                        MEMBERS: 


JOSE E. SMITH, C.P.A.                                                                                                          AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF                                                     


                                                                                                                                                  CERTIFIED PUBLIC  ACCOUNTANTS 


                                                                                                                                                  FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF 


                                                                                                                                                  CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS    


 
 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE    
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 


 IN ACCORANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.650, RULES OF THE AUDITOR  
GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 


 
 


To the Board of Directors of 
Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.: 


 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
 
We have audited Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.’s (the 
"Center”)(a non-profit organization) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Department of Financial 


Services’ State Projects Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Center’s major State projects for the 
year ended June 30, 2018.  The Center’s major State projects are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its State 
projects. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of 
the Center’s major Federal programs and State projects based on our 
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standard 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 


Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. 
Those standards, and Chapter 10.650, require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major state project occurred.  An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Center’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and state project.  However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Center’s 
compliance. 
 
 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project 
 
In our opinion, the Center complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of its major state projects for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Center is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Center’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major state project to determine the auditing procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on compliance for each major state project and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Chapter 
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Center’s internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design 
or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program or state project on a timely 
basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a major federal 
program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal 


control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a major federal program or state project that 
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the 
limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
 
 
 


-19- 
 
 







 


 
 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance 
and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Chapter 
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 


 
 
 


 
October 24, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED  


ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
 IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  


 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.: 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements 
of Florida Keys Area Health Education (“the Center”)(a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 24, 2018. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 


 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we 
considered the Center’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Center’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of 
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course 
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 


 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Center’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 


 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Center’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
October 24, 2018 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 


 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 


 


 
 


Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results  
 
 


Financial Statements    
  


Type of auditor’s report issued:                                                        Unqualified 


 


Internal control over financial reporting: 


  Material weakness(es) identified?                                      ____ Yes                X  No  


  Reportable condition(s) identified that 


    are not considered to be material                                                      


    weakness(es)?                                                                          Yes             __X_  None Reported 


 


 


Noncompliance material to financial 


  statements noted?                                                                _____ Yes             X    No 


 
 


State Projects    
 


Internal control over major programs: 


  Material weakness(es) identified?                                       ____ Yes                X   No  


  Significant deficiencies(s) identified that 


    are not considered to be material                                                      


    weakness(es)?                                                                            Yes             __X_  None Reported 


 


Noncompliance material to financial 


  statements noted?                                                               _____ Yes               X    No 


 


Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance:                


    for major projects:                                                                          Unqualified   


 


Any audit findings disclosed that are required 


  to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) 


  of the Florida Single Audit Act?                                                  Yes              X       No 
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FLORIDA KEYS AREA                                                                PAGE 2 


HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC.              
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 
 


 


Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results – (Cont.) 
 


Identification of major State Projects: 


 


            CSFA Number(s)                                        Name of State Program or Cluster   


 


                  64.097                                                    Florida Department of Health 


                  64.132                                                    Florida Department of Health     
 


Dollar threshold used to distinguish                                                     


  between type A and type B programs:                                $ 300,000 


 


  Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?                                 __X_ Yes                 No  
 


 


 
 


Section II – Financial Statements Findings 
 


We noted no material or reportable conditions. 


 
 


 


Section III – Major State Projects Findings and Questioned Costs   
 


 


We  noted no material or reportable conditions. 


 
 


 


Summary of Prior Year Audit Findings 


 


There were no audit findings in fiscal year 2017. 


 
 


Section IV – Other Issues 


 


1) A management letter was issued on October 24, 2018 with no findings noted. 


2) No Corrective Action Plan is required because there were no findings required to 


be reported under Department of Financial Services’ State Project Compliance 


Supplement. 
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October 24, 2018 
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
 
This letter is to advise that for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, 
there were no material or reportable conditions noted during the audit 
of Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc. Further a formal 
management letter was not issued to the organization for the same 
period as there were no findings to report. 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
Smith Buzzi & Associates, LLC. 
Miami, Florida 
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10021 $391.00 01/01/2011


10060 $254.00 01/01/2011


10120 $300.00 01/01/2011


10121 $557.00 01/01/2011


11100 $205.00 01/01/2011


11101 $121.00 01/01/2011


11200 $171.00 01/01/2011


11300 $71.00 01/01/2011


11301 $178.00 01/01/2011


11302 $203.00 01/01/2011


16000 $100.00


16020 $231.00 01/01/2011


17000 $176.00 01/01/2011


17003 $63.00 01/01/2011


17004 $465.00 01/01/2011


17110 $128.00 01/01/2011


20552 $150.00 01/01/2012


29130 $85.00 01/01/2011


29505 $249.00 01/01/2011


29515 $189.00 01/01/2011


29580 $163.00 01/01/2011


58301 $345.00 01/01/2014


58350 $385.00 01/01/2013


65205 $165.00 01/01/2013


69210 $125.00 01/01/2011


80100 $60.00 01/01/2012


81002 $26.00 01/01/2011


81025 $30.00 01/01/2012


82962 $15.00 01/01/2011


86580 $30.00 07/01/2012


87880 $25.00 01/01/2012


90471 $28.00 01/01/2011


90632 $125.00 01/01/2012


90633 $50.00


Application Short Leg Splint Calf Foot


Strapping Unna Boot


Imadm Prq Id Subq/Im Njxs 1 Vaccine


Hepatitis A Vaccine Adult IM


Hepatitis A Vaccine ped/adol, 2 dose


Skin Test Tuberculosis Intradermal


Biopsy Skin Subq&/Mucous Membrane Ea Addl Lesn


Removal Impacted Cerumen Instrumentation Unilat


Fine Needle Aspiration W/O Imaging Guidance


Incision & Drainage Abscess Simple/Single


Incision & Removal Foreign Body Subq Tiss Simple


Incision & Removal Foreign Body Subq Tiss Compl


Bx Skin Subcutaneous&/Mucous Membrane 1 Lesion


Application Long Leg Splint Thigh Ankle/Toes


Removal Skn Tags Mlt Fibrq Tags Any Area Upw/15


Shaving Skin Les 1 Trunk Arm Leg Diam 0.5cm


Shvg Skin Les 1 Trunk/Arm/Leg Diam 0.6-1.0 Cm


Shvg Skn Lesion 1 Trunk/Arm/Leg Diam 1.1-2.0 Cm


Drs&/Dbrdmt Prtl-Thkns Burns 1st/Sbsq Small


Destruction Premalignant Lesion 1st


Destruction Premalignant Lesion 2-14 Ea


Destruction Premalignant Lesion 15/>


Destruction Benign Lesions Up To 14


Injection Single/Mlt Trigger Point 1/2 Muscles


Application Finger Splint Static


Removal Fb Eye Conjunctival Superficial


Drug Scr Qual Mlt Drug Classes Chrom Ea Px


Urnls Dip Stick/Tablet Rgnt Non-Auto W/O Micrscp


Urine Pregnancy Test Visual Color Cmprsn Meths


Gluc Bld Gluc Mntr Dev Cleared Fda Spec Home Use


Strep, rapid antibody


Burn care, initial


Insertion Intrauterine Device Iud


Removal Intrauterine Device Iud







90636 $175.00


90645 $50.00


90647 $50.00


90648 $50.00


90649 $200.00


90653 $30.00


90655 $30.00


90656 $30.00


90658 $31.00 01/01/2011


90669 $150.00
90672 $30.00


90685 $30.00


90696 $75.00


90698 $120.00


90700 $45.00


90702 $50.00


90703 $32.00 01/01/2011


90707 $80.00


90710 $185.00


90713 $50.00


90714 $32.00 01/01/2012


90715 $105.00 01/01/2011


90716 $135.00


90718 $45.00


90723 $110.00


90732 $35.00 01/01/2011


90734 $150.00


90739 $90.00


90744 $45.00


90746 $90.00


90748 $60.00


92552 $30.00 01/01/2012


94640 $60.00 01/01/2013


94760 $37.00 01/01/2011


DTaP <7


Tetanus Toxoid Adsorbed Intramuscular


Influenza preservative free (6-35 months)


Flu, inactivated, subunit, adjuvanted, IM


Flu preservative-free 6-35 months


Twinrix (Hep A - Hep B)


HIB-PRP-T


HIB-PRP-OMP


Comvax (Hep B-HIB)


Hep B, ped/adol 3 dose


Hep B, adult, 2 dose


HIB, 4 dose


IPV


MMR


Pneumonia conjugate


Varicella


DT <7


Pure Tone Audiometry Air Only


Pressurized/Nonpressurized Inhalation Treatment


Noninvasive Ear/Pulse Oximetry Single Deter


HPV quadrivalent


Pediarix (DTaP/HepB/IPV)


Pentacel (DTaP/HIB/IPV)


Kinrix (DTaP/IPV)


ProQuad (MMR-Varicella)


Td Adult 


Td Adult, Preservative Free


Tdap Vaccine (7 -65)


Pneumococcal Polysac Vaccine 23-V 2 Yrs Subq I m


Hep B, adult


Meningococcal


Flu preservative-free 3y+


Flu, quadrivalent, live, intranasal


Influenza Virus Vaccine Split Virus 3 Yrs Im







99080 $30.00


99173 $10.00


99201 $100.00 01/01/2011


99202 $146.00 01/01/2011


99203 $206.00 01/01/2011


99204 $283.00 01/01/2011


99205 $364.00 01/01/2011


99211 $57.00 01/01/2011


99212 $89.00 01/01/2011


99213 $117.00 01/01/2011


99214 $174.00 01/01/2011


99215 $267.00 01/01/2011


99241 $196.00 01/01/2011


99242 $290.00 01/01/2011


99243 $304.00 01/01/2011


99244 $484.00 01/01/2011


99245 $652.00 01/01/2011


99252 $243.00 01/01/2011


99253 $305.00 01/01/2011


99254 $382.00 01/01/2011


99255 $505.00 01/01/2011


99362--W $250.00 05/29/2014


99381 $175.00 05/29/2014


99382 $185.00 05/29/2014


99383 $195.00 05/29/2014


99384 $205.00 05/29/2014


99385 $225.00 05/29/2014


99386 $251.00 05/29/2014


99387 $261.00 05/29/2014


99391 $139.00 05/29/2014


99392 $145.00 05/29/2014


99393 $150.00 05/29/2014


99394 $165.00 05/29/2014


99395 $193.00 05/29/2014


Office Outpatient New 10 Minutes


Screening test of visual acuity, quantitative, bilateral


Office Consultation New/Estab Patient 40 Min


Office Outpatient New 20 Minutes


Office Outpatient New 30 Minutes


Office Outpatient New 45 Minutes


Office Outpatient New 60 Minutes


Office Outpatient Visit 5 Minutes


Office Outpatient Visit 10 Minutes


Office Outpatient Visit 15 Minutes


Office Outpatient Visit 25 Minutes


Office Outpatient Visit 40 Minutes


Office Consultation New/Estab Patient 15 Min


Office Consultation New/Estab Patient 30 Min


Initial Preventive Medicine New Pt Age 18-39yrs


Office Consultation New/Estab Patient 60 Min


Office Consultation New/Estab Patient 80 Min


Initl Inpatient Consult New/Estab Pt 40 Min


Initl Inpatient Consult New/Estab Pt 55 Min


Initl Inpatient Consult New/Estab Pt 80 Min


Initial Inpatient Consult New/Estab Pt 110 Min


Physician/team confer appx 60 min


Initial Preventive Medicine New Patient 1year


Initial Preventive Medicine New Pt Age 1-4 Yrs


Initial Preventive Medicine New Pt Age 5-11 Yrs


Initial Preventive Medicine New Pt Age 12-17 Yr


Periodic Preventive Med Est Patient 5 to 11yrs


Periodic Preventive Med Est Patient 12-17yrs


Periodic Preventive Med Est Patient 18-39 Yrs


Special reports / forms


Initial Preventive Medicine New Patient 40-64yrs


Initial Preventive Medicine New Patient 65yrs


Periodic Preventive Med Established Patient 1y


Periodic Preventive Med Est Patient 1-4yrs







99396 $238.00 05/29/2014


99397 $255.00 05/29/2014


99406 $37.00 01/01/2013


99407 $73.00 01/01/2013


99446 $25.00


99447 $50.00


99448 $75.00


99449 $100.00


A4550 $30.00 01/01/2012


A4565 $35.01 01/01/2013


CAMP $57.00 01/01/2014


DSC25 $55.00 01/01/2012


DSCOLL $35.00 01/01/2012


G0008 $22.00 01/01/2011


G0009 $21.00 01/01/2011


G0101 $56.00 01/01/2011


G0108 $141.00 01/01/2013


G0436 $20.00 01/01/2012


G0438 $175.00 01/01/2011


G0439 $125.00 01/01/2011


J0696 $15.85 01/01/2014


J1030 $53.00 01/01/2011


J1040 $41.05 09/01/2013


J1100 $7.30 01/01/2014


J1200 $24.00 01/01/2012


J1885 $10.80 01/01/2013


J3301 $46.15 09/01/2013


J3420 $16.00 01/01/2011


J7613 $7.40 01/01/2013


L1830 $41.84 01/01/2013


L3260 $17.60 01/01/2013


L3908 $22.45 01/01/2014


PREMP $60.00 01/01/2012


Q0091 $36.00 01/01/2011


Smoke Tob Cessation Cnsl As Pt; Intrmed 3-10 Min


Annual Wellness Visit; Personaliz Pps Init Visit


Annual Wellness Vst; Personalized Pps Subsqt Vst


Injection Ceftriaxone Sodium Per 250 Mg


Injection Methylprednisolone Acetate 40 Mg


Slings


Camp Physical


Drug Screen Collection


Tobacco Use Cessation Intensive 10 Minutes


Administration Of Influenza Virus Vaccine


Administration Of Pneumococcal Vaccine


Interprofessional Telephone/Internet Consultations 5-10 minutes or 


more of medical consultative discussion and review


Interprofessional Telephone/Internet Consultations 31 minutes or 


more of medical consultative discussion and review


Interprofessional Telephone/Internet Consultations 21-30  minutes 


or more of medical consultative discussion and review


Interprofessional Telephone/Internet Consultations 11-20 minutes 


or more of medical consultative discussion and review


Periodic Preventive Med Est Patient 40-64yrs


Periodic Preventive Med Est Patient 65yrs& Older


Tobacco Use Cessation Intermediate 3-10 Minutes


Drug Screen Collection


Diab Op Self-Mgmt Trn Srvc Individual Per 30 Min


Screen Pap Smear; Obtain Prep &C Onvey To Lab


Cerv/Vaginal Cancer Scr; Pelv&Clin Breast Exam


Surgical Boot/Shoe Each


Wrist Hand Orthosis Ext Control Cock Up Prefab


Pre employment physical


Injection Diphenhydramine Hcl Up To 50 Mg


Injection Ketorolac Tromethamine Per 15 Mg


Injection Triamcinolone Acetonide Nos 10 Mg


Injection Vit B-12 Cyanocobalamin To 1000 Mcg


Albuterol Inhal Non-Cp Prod Thru Dme U Dose 1 Mg


Knee Orthosis Immoblizer Canvas Longtudnl Prefab


Injection Dexamethosone Sodium Phosphate 1 Mg


Injection Methylprednisolone Acetate 80 Mg


Surgical Trays
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INTRODUCTION 


 
 


 


 


WELCOME! 


 
Welcome to the Florida Keys Area Health Education Center (FKAHEC), 


Inc.  We want to do our part to make your job more fulfilling.  Our 
goal is to provide you with the best benefits and employee services 


possible. 
 


Ultimately, the success of our organization depends on you.  You are 


important and that is why we want to create the best opportunity, 
encouragement and recognition to develop your talents. 


 
This employee handbook (“Handbook”) is a source of information 


about benefits, payroll, and procedures, along with general rules and 
policies.  This Handbook is not a legal document or an employment 


contract.  It is for your information. 
 


Florida Keys AHEC, Inc. reserves the right to amend, add or change 
the policies, protocols, procedures and/or employee benefits listed or 


offered in this Handbook at any time.  Florida Keys AHEC, Inc. also 
wished to remind you that employment is at will. 


 
Attached is the Employee Handbook Acknowledgement Form 


(EXHIBIT A).  Please carefully read, review, sign, and return this 


form to your supervisor at the time the manual is given to you. 
 
 


 


 







 GENERAL POLICIES 
 


 


 Equal Employment Opportunity 
 


FKAHEC has long had a policy of providing Equal Opportunities for all 


persons in employment.  It is the policy of the FKAHEC that all 


qualified applicants for employment will be recruited, hired and 
evaluated on the basis of merit without regard to race, creed, age, 


color, sex, national origin, ancestry, disability or Vietnam Era Veteran 
Status or any other legally protected status in accordance with 


applicable local, state and federal laws.  The employment policies of 
the FKAHEC have been, and will continue, to ensure that all employees 


are treated equally with no discrimination in compensation, 
opportunities for advancement (including promotions and transfers), 


training and discipline. This policy extends to all terms, conditions and 
privileges of employment as well as the use of all company facilities 


and participation in all company-sponsored activities. 
 


Harassment, retaliation, coercion, interference or intimidation of any 
employee because of that employee’s race, religion, color, national 


origin, ancestry, sex, age, sexual orientation or disability is strictly 


forbidden.  Any employee who experiences such activity should 
complete an incident report form, report it immediately to his/her 


supervisor or a Florida Keys AHEC, Inc. officer. 
 


 Communications 
The normal mode of communication between the FKAHEC staff and the 


Board of Directors will be through the Executive Director.  The 
Executive Director will regularly attend meetings of the Board, its 


Committees, and other key task forces. 
 


 Classification of Employees 
It is the intent of the FKAHEC to comply with all applicable regulations 


of the United States Department of Labor and the Fair Labor Standards 
Act of 1938, as amended.  Accordingly, employees of the Center will 


be classified in accordance with the Act. 


 
Exempt employees - An individual who is exempt from the overtime 


provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act because they are classified 
as an executive, professional or administrative employee and meet the 


specific criteria for exemption. Exempt employees are not subject to 
the FLSA’s minimum wage and overtime requirements. This means 







that an exempt employee need not be paid overtime no matter how 


many hours he or she works in a week. 
 


Non-exempt employees are those whose job duties or rate of pay 
make them subject to the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act.  


Non-exempt employees are paid on an hourly wage basis. 
 


A Full-time employee is an individual who works the equivalent of 
40 hours per week and is eligible for full employee benefits. 


 
A Part-time employee is an individual who regularly works less than 


40 hours per week and is eligible for employee benefits on a pro-rated 
basis according to the number of hours worked. 


 
A Contract/Temporary Employee is an individual who is not 


employed on a regular basis but is called in on special occasions to 


assist when workloads requires additional staff, or for special projects 
for a specific time-frame.  Temporary employees are not eligible for 


employee benefits and are considered at-will employees (Employment 
at-will).  Contract/temporary employees will follow, adhere and be 


subject to the policies of the FKAHEC when representing the FKAHEC, 
will be provided a 1099 form for taxation purposes, will be supported 


by the FKAHEC staff and be required to sign a memorandum of 
agreement outlining the specific requirements and conditions of their 


position. 
 


 90-Day Evaluation Period 
 


Every employee hired is subject to a 90 day probation period. The 
purpose of the probation period is to assess competence of the 


individual relative to their specific work assignment.  During the 


probation period, employees will be evaluated after the first 90 days in 
such areas as ability, aptitude, dependability, and other areas relevant 


to the employee’s job position.  The evaluation at three (3) months will 
be formal and will determine the employee’s status as a regular full 


time employee.  At any time during the first 90-days your work is 
determined to be deficient, you may be discharged. Employees during 


their first 90-day probationary period may resign without notice.  Upon 
successful completion of the 90-day probationary period, written 


notice must be given to the Executive Director. 
 


Probationary periods may be extended by the Executive Director. 
 







 New Employee Notification 


Each new employee shall receive written notification stating the terms 
of their employment, including the starting date, salary, employee 


benefits, and the description of the job they are to perform. 
 


 Performance Reviews 
FKAHEC conducts yearly written reviews of all employees during the 


month of June.   Performance reviews are an evaluation and planning 
tool for both the supervisor and the employee and does not necessarily 


result in merit increases.  All salary increases are performance based 
and recommended based on performance reviews. The Board of 


Directors approves all salary increases with the approval of the fiscal 
year budget. 


 
Evaluation of the Executive Director will be made by the Executive 


Committee of the Board of Directors. 


 
 Personnel Records 


Personnel records will be maintained on all employees.  Personnel 
records are confidential and will be open only to the employee, the 


Executive Director, the Chair of the Board of Directors, and 
government employees entitled by law to see such records. 


 
 Job Descriptions 


 
It is the policy of FKAHEC to select, retain and promote competent 


personnel whose qualifications are commensurate with anticipated job 
responsibilities.  To achieve this objective, a job description is 


maintained for each position classification that delineates the 
functions, performance standards, specific qualifications and 


competencies required of each classification.  Job Descriptions will be 


made available to all personnel at the time they are hired, anytime a 
revision occurs, and as requested.  
 


 Payroll 
The pay period for the FKAHEC shall be semi-monthly.  Paydays shall 


be on the 15th and last working day of the month.  There shall be no 
hold back period.  Payroll adjustments, if necessary, will be made in 


the following pay period.  Partial pay shall be determined by the 
number of hours worked in the pay period times the hourly rate.  The 


hourly rate is computed as the annual salary divided by 2080 hours.  
Each employee shall be responsible for keeping his/her own time 


record.  The employee’s supervisor is responsible for review and 
verification of the employee’s time record. 







 


Employee wages are based on the salary range for the position 
approved by the Board of Directors each fiscal year. 


 
The Board of Directors will review the employee benefit program each 


fiscal year and, where appropriate, direct the Executive Director to 
make changes. 
 


 Payroll Deductions 
 


The FKAHEC is required to make certain deductions from your 
earnings.   Mandated deductions include Federal Income Tax 


Withholding, Social Security and Medicare Taxes.  Employee 
authorized deductions may include medical and/or other financial 


contributions according to individual employee participation in our 
benefit plans.  Employees must authorize in writing all deductions not 


mandated by law or by court order. 


 
In addition to standard payroll deductions, we are required by law to 


comply with certain court orders, liens, or wage assignments and must 
make payroll deductions pursuant to those orders. 


 
 Change of Status 


 
It is your responsibility to give written notification to the Executive 


Director immediately if you change your name, address, phone 
number, marital status, number of dependents and any other pertinent 


banking/financial information related to deductions or payroll deposits.  
Such information will be maintained in your confidential Employee file. 


 
 Hours of Work 


 


The basic workday for full–time employees is 8 hours and the regular 
office hours of the FKAHEC are 8:30 am to 5:00 pm with a 30 minute 


lunch break.  Factors such as workloads, operating efficiency, staffing 
needs and work schedules may require variations in individual 


employee start and quit times.  Your supervisor will give the schedule 
of your standard workweek to you.  Employee work hours may be from 


5:00 am to 12:00 am to include weekends and evenings based on 
duties assigned. 


 
 


 







 Conduct Code 


 
You create the professional image many people will have about the 


FKAHEC.  You should use good judgment in determining your dress, 
appearance and conduct.  A well-groomed appearance, good body 


hygiene and proper professional conduct are important in your overall 
effectiveness as well as a polite and professional demeanor.  All 


complaints must be documented and addressed within 72 hours.   
 


Should the resolution of a complaint be beyond the employee’s range 
of authority to resolve he/she will refer the complaint in writing to 


their supervisor with a description of the complaint, corrective actions 
taken by the employee to resolve the complaint and summary of the 


recommendation being made by the employee for resolution with 
documentation of the rationale on which the recommendation was 


based. 


 
 Smoking 


 
In accordance with the Florida Indoor Clean Air Act and FKAHEC policy, 


smoking is not permitted in any of the FKAHEC’s facilities. 
 


CLEAN INDOOR AIR PROGRAM 
The "Florida Clean Air Act" (Florida Statutes 386.201) was enacted in 
1985 to protect the public health, comfort, and environment by 


creating areas in public places and at public meetings that are 
reasonably free from tobacco smoke by providing a uniform statewide 


maximum code. From the educational standpoint, public places, 
include educational facilities, public school buses, auditoriums, and 


recreational facilities. Under this state statute, "no person may smoke 
in a public place or at a public meeting except in designated smoking 


areas”. 
 


 
 Recruitment and Appointment 


It is the policy of the FKAHEC to recruit, hire, train, and promote the 
best qualified person(s) without regard to age, sex, marital status, 


color, race, religion, national origin, handicap and/or sexual 


orientation. 
 


The FKAHEC Affirmative Action goal is to have a workforce that 
represents by percentage, the same composition as the population the 


Center serves. 
 







The recruitment process will be conducted so as to insure, to the 


extent practical, that persons from all sectors of the community are 
aware of available positions. 


 
The FKAHEC will establish and maintain a system for receiving and 


investigating complaints from employees and other interested parties 
related to alleged discriminatory practices. 


 
 Nepotism 


It is the policy of the FKAHEC to disallow the employment of relatives 
of Board members or current employees. 


 
In rare circumstances when it is in the best interest of the organization 


to employ a person who is related to a member of the Board or a 
current employee, a resolution by the Board of Directors will be 


required.  The resolution must clearly state the circumstances for the 


person’s employment. 
 


 
 Sexual and Other Forms of Harassment 


 
FKAHEC maintains a firm policy of total disapproval of sexual 


harassment by any employee of the FKAHEC.   All of our employees 
should be able to enjoy a work environment free from all forms of 


discrimination, including sexual harassment.  Unwelcome activity of a 
sexual nature is classified as discrimination under the law.  Sexual 


harassment is a form of misconduct which undermines the integrity of 
the employment relationship.  No one, whether male or female, should 


be subjected to unsolicited, unwelcome sexual advances or sexually 
suggestive conduct, either physical or verbal, from another employee.  


Included within the types of conduct prohibited by the company as 


sexual harassment are the following: 
 


 Requesting or demanding sexual favors as a condition of 
employment. 


 The making of sexually related disparaging remarks. 
 The use of vulgar or obscene language, print and/or other forms of 


media or communications that would offend ordinary sensibilities 
and which are of a sexual nature. 


 Unwarranted or uninvited touching, fondling, or bodily contact. 
 Any other contact, which creates or tends to create a hostile 


environment based on an individual’s or group’s sex. 
 







If an employee is subjected to such conduct, he/she is required to 


immediately complete an incident report, notify the Executive Director 
and/or the FKAHEC Board Chair, as appropriate, within a 24-hour 


workday in the same manner as addressing any other EEO problems.  
Any Supervisor, who becomes aware of sexual or any other form of 


harassment by any employee, is required to take immediate 
appropriate corrective action.  If an employee is unable or 


uncomfortable about discussing this issue with the Executive Director, 
he or she may discuss the situation with the Board Chair, as 


appropriate. 
 


The FKAHEC will not tolerate sexual and other forms of harassment of 
any nature and will investigate all reported incidents of harassment 


promptly and confidentially.  Persons who are guilty of any form of 
harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and 


including discharge. 


 
 


 
 Americans with Disabilities Act 


 
It is the policy of Florida Keys AHEC, Inc. to comply with all the 


relevant and applicable provisions in the American with Disabilities Act 
(“ADA”).  We will not discriminate against any qualified job applicant 


or employee because of a person’s physical or mental disability.  
Florida Keys AHEC, Inc. will make a reasonable accommodation, where 


such accommodation is necessary, feasible and effective for all 
employees or applicants with disabilities, provided that the individual is 


medically qualified for and effective in the position and provided that 
any accommodations made do not require significant difficulty or 


expense. 


 
 Family and Medical Leave Act 


 
It is understood that the FKAHEC is not legally required to offer Family 


and Medical Leave according to Federal Law as its staffing is less than 
50 people. It is the policy of the FKAHEC to offer permanent full time 


exempt employees unpaid Family and Medical Leave.  Under the 
Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) an employee can request 


up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave in twelve (12) months for the 
following purposes: 


 
 Caring for a newborn or newly adopted child or a child placed for 


foster care with the employee; 







 


 Caring for a child, parent, or spouse of the employee who is 
seriously ill; or 


 
 Recovering from or obtaining treatment for the employee’s own 


serious illness that prevents the employee from meeting job 
requirements. 


 
The employee must have been employed by the FKAHEC for at least 


twelve months and worked at least 1250 hours during the twelve 
months prior to the date the leave begins.  During the leave, the 


Company will maintain your health benefits the same as if you had 
continued working.  The employee’s health insurance benefits will 


continue to be paid while on FMLA leave.  During unpaid 
family/medical leave, you must make arrangements with the 


Accounting Department to pay your portion of the monthly premium 


for dependent and/or employee insurance as applicable.  Your group 
health care coverage may be terminated if your premium payment is 


more than 30 days late.  Additionally, if you fail to return from leave, 
the FKAHEC may require repayment of any premium that was paid for 


maintaining your health coverage, unless you do not return because of 
a continuing or recurring serious health condition, or because of other 


circumstances beyond your control.  You are not entitled to other 
benefits, to include accrual of vacation and sick leave, or seniority 


accrual during the leave. 
 


 FKAHEC will attempt to return an employee to his or her former 
position or to a similar position when the employee returns from a 


family/medical leave of absence.  However, FKAHEC's need to fill a 
position may override its ability to hold a position open until an 


employee returns from leave.   FKAHEC, therefore, cannot assure that 
it will be able to return the employee to any position after the leave of 


absence is over.  The FKAHEC retains the discretion to determine the 
similarity of any available positions and the employee's qualifications. 


Failure to return from a family/medical leave of absence upon the 
expiration of the leave will be considered a voluntary termination.  


Written notice of intent to return on a specified date is required in 
writing two weeks prior to return. 


 
 Immigration and Employment Eligibility 


 


In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Immigration Act of 1990, we will hire only those individuals 







who are authorized to work in the United States.  All individuals will be 


required to submit documentary proof of their identity and 
employment authorization.  Employees will also be required to 


complete and sign, under oath, the Immigration and Naturalization 
Service Form I-9.  This form requires you to attest that you are 


authorized to work in the United States and that the documents 
submitted by you are genuine.  You are required to notify the FKAHEC 


if you are no longer legally authorized to work in the United States. 
 


 Drug Free Work Place 
 


The FKAHEC wants to provide its employees, volunteers, and guests 
with an environment that is free from the effects of drug, alcohol, and 


other substance abuse.  To this end, the use, dispensing or possession 
of illegal drugs and substances on our premises, and or at company-


sponsored functions is strictly prohibited.  This prohibition also covers 


the unapproved use of alcoholic beverages on premises and the use of 
all drugs and substances to the extent they impair the employee in the 


performance of his/her job.  Any individual entering the premises 
under the influence of illegal drugs or substances will be considered to 


be in violation of this policy.  If any such prohibited act occurs, the 
FKAHEC will take such action as deemed appropriate, in its sole 


discretion, including immediate dismissal and/or referral of pertinent 
information to law enforcement authorities for further action if 


appropriate. Any employee who needs or desires help with problems 
resulting from drug, substance or alcohol abuse or dependency may 


directly contact or be referred to services such as those provided 
through the medical plans. 


 
When taking or under the influence of prescription drugs, while on 


duty, that may affect your job performance or duties an employee 


must notify the Executive Director.  A physician’s note will be required 
indicating any restraints on the employee while under the influence of 


a medication to include, but not limited to driving, hours spent at the 
office, communication, physical activity and/or the operation of 


equipment. The Executive Director may realign job duties as needed.  
 


 Violence Free Workplace  
 


 Florida Keys AHEC’s policy is to provide a safe workplace environment 
for our employees.  Our goal is to minimize the risk of personal injury 


to employees, while at work, and damage to FKAHEC property. 
   







We expect you to exercise reasonable judgment when confronted with 


a potentially violent or dangerous individual or situation.  We 
discourage employees from engaging in a physical or verbal 


confrontation with a potentially violent individual.   
 


Threats, threatening language, and any other act of aggression or 
violence made toward or by any of our employees Will Not Be 


Tolerated.  For purposes of this policy, threats include any verbal or 
physical harassment, attempts to intimidate or instill fear in others, 


hostile gestures, flashing of concealed weapons, stalking, verbal or 
physical abuse or any other hostile, aggressive, or injurious actions 


toward another individual for the purpose of domination or 
intimidation.  Employees may not have weapons of any kind to 


include, but not be limited to guns or knives on premises or during 
FKAHEC functions. 


 


 Hazardous Chemicals and Your Right To Know 
 


Hazard Communications Law was enacted to protect workers from 
contamination exposure to potentially dangerous chemicals. 


 
Employees who work with or have contact with hazardous chemicals or 


substances are required to consult with their supervisors regarding 
identification of hazardous substances, use of proper equipment and 


the proper handling of such chemicals in the workplace. 
 


You must comply with all occupational safety and health standards and 
regulations established by the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 


1970 and regulations which have been added to this Act by both state 
and federal governments.  If you believe that you are being exposed 


to a known or suspected hazard when working with toxic chemicals or 


substances, you have a right to know about such hazards through 
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS).  Your supervisor will review the 


MSDS with you.  If your supervisor does not have this information 
available, you are to contact the Executive Director immediately. 


 
 Confidentiality and Retaliation 


 
Complaints filed by any employee will be held in confidence to the 


extent possible.  Our policy expressly prohibits retaliation against any 
employee who files a complaint.  Employees will not be discriminated 


against, adversely affected or terminated for having filed a complaint.  
 







All records pertaining to a complaint or the investigation of a complaint 


will be maintained in a confidential file separate from the employee’s 
personnel file.  


 
 Safety Rules 


 
Safety is a vital concern to Florida Keys AHEC.  It is your right to be 


able to perform your job without concern of injury to yourself, co-
worker, property or equipment.  Your help is vital for your own 


protection, and well being.  Florida Keys AHEC insists upon safe 
methods and practices at all times. 


 
You are required to comply with all safety rules and follow published 


work instructions.  If any doubt exists about safety of the job, you 
must stop and get instructions from your supervisor before continuing 


to work. The following are general safety rules that you must observe.  


In the course of your employment, you may be provided with 
additional safety policies and procedures geared to your specific job 


description. 
 


 Do not use alcohol or non-prescription drugs that will impair mental 
or motor abilities while at work. 


 
 Operate only machines or equipment that you have been trained to 


operate or authorized to operate by your supervisor. 
 


 Wear the necessary protective equipment when doing hazardous 
jobs. 


 
 Keep work areas clean and orderly at all times. 


 


 Do not operate any equipment if you are taking prescription drugs 
that may impair your mental or motor abilities.  You must inform 


your supervisor if you are taking such drugs. 
 


 Immediately report all accidents and injuries the same day, no 
matter how minor, to your supervisor. 


 
 Review safety educational material. 


 
 Follow all other written and spoken safety rules. 


 
 Worker’s Compensation 


 







Worker’s compensation is a program which pays medical and disability 


benefits due to a disability, when the injury or occupational illness 
arises “out of and in the course of” employment.  Worker’s 


compensation is regulated by the State of Florida and the benefits are 
set by law.  It allows for a Managed Care Arrangement to be exclusive 


provider for treatment of work-related injuries.  It also allows the 
employer to maintain a Drug-Free Workplace. 


 
Florida Keys AHEC provides medical care for workers injured on the 


job through a managed care arrangement via the insurance provider.  
The Provider will coordinate and work with you and your doctor to 


provide treatment that is appropriate and that will help you return to 
work as soon as medically possible. 


 
While you are off work for a work-related injury or illness, you are 


prohibited from working for another employer or person.  Working for 


another employer or person while you are off work for a work related 
injury or illness is considered misconduct and is grounds for immediate 


termination. 
 


False worker’s compensation claims are investigated by the Florida 
Department of Insurance and the FBI.  Filing a false worker’s 


compensation claim is a crime that may result in a fine of $50,000 and 
a jail term in a state prison for up to 5 years.   We take this matter 


very seriously; all possible false claims will be reported to the 
authorities immediately. 


 
The following are your general rights and benefits under 


worker’s compensation: 
 


 Worker’s compensation insurance coverage is provided by your 


employer at no cost to you. 
 


 It will pay for all reasonable and necessary medical care if you get 
injured at work or develop an occupational disease arising out of 


and in the course of your employment. 
 


 You are covered from your first day of work on the job. 
 


 If you are injured on the job, you will be required to take a drug 
and alcohol test.  If you test positive for alcohol or illegal drugs at 


the time of your injury, you will not be entitled to worker’s 
compensation benefits under this program as per Florida Law and 


you will be terminated from employment. 







 


 You have the right to copies of any medical reports you request. 
 


 Care that is medically necessary will be given at no cost to you.  
This includes surgical, hospital, dental care, prescriptions and 


medical supplies, if needed.  You must use the managed care 
providers for medical care. 


 
 If you go out of the network to seek medical care, your benefits will 


not be covered (except in the case of limb- or life-threatening 
emergency). 


 
 A list of the managed care provider’s treatment centers will be 


provided.  You should go to one of them unless it is an emergency, 
or unless the workers compensation insurance provider tells you 


otherwise. 


 
 The plan will pay providers directly for authorized services.  If you 


receive provider bills, please call or send them directly to the 
insurance Provider.  Do not pay them. 


 
 If you go to a participating pharmacy, the pharmacy will bill the 


worker’s compensation plan directly.  Or you can go to any 
pharmacy you choose, pay the bill yourself, and then send the 


original receipt to the Provider for reimbursement.  Reimbursement 
will be made according to State rules or the lowest rate the Provider 


normally pays.  This means you may not be reimbursed for the full 
cost you paid. 


 
 The program provides payment to you for a portion of the wages 


you might lose if your injury or illness disables you for more than 


seven calendar days. 
 


 These payments continue until a Provider physician releases you to 
return to work, with or without restrictions.  You must follow the 


physician’s instructions and prescribed medical treatment.  If you 
have any questions on a disability payment, call the Provider 


directly.  
 


The following are you responsibilities “If You Get Hurt On The 
Job” 


 
 Immediately contact the main office at 305-743-7111.  After 


hours you are to contact your immediate supervisor. 







 


 Fill out an incident report immediately or at first chance 
documenting injury and other pertinent information. 


 
 Indicate the severity of your injury 


 
 If it is a true emergency, have someone call 911 or take you to 


the nearest emergency room. 
 


 Advise the Executive Director to obtain the information for 
contacting the Provider to arrange for treatment authorization. 


 
 Affirmative Action Policy for Equal Employment 


Opportunities 
 


It is the policy of Florida Keys AHEC, Inc., to provide equal opportunity 


in the employment of all applicants and employees.  Everyone 
(applicants and employees) will be evaluated on the basis of their 


individual abilities and not on the basis of extraneous factors such as 
race, religion, sex, age, sexual orientation, national origin, physical 


handicap or marital status or any other legally protected status in 
accordance with applicable local, state and federal laws. 


 
Florida Keys AHEC affirms its commitment to an action program to 


achieve the goal of equitable representation and distribution of 
minorities and women on the staff. 


 
The affirmative action concept will apply to all employment practices, 


such as recruitment, selection, transfers, promotions, training, 
compensation, benefits and termination.  The Affirmative Action 


Program will serve as a guideline in these matters and will be subject 


to constant review, evaluation and change as circumstances, needs 
and experience require. 


 
 Discrimination 


Any employee or applicant for employment who feels that they are a 
victim of discrimination on the part of another employee or Center 


member, based on age, sex, marital status, race, color, religion, 
national origin, handicap, or any other discriminatory factor may, 


within 180 days after becoming aware of a possible discriminatory act, 
submit a written complaint to the FKAHEC.  The Executive Director 


shall investigate and respond in writing within ten (10) days after the 
complaint has been filed.  If the complainant or the Executive Director 







deem it          necessary, a meeting may be arranged between the 


respective parties. 
 


If the complainant is not satisfied that the grievance has been handled 
satisfactorily, they may appeal in writing to the Board of Directors.  


The Board shall have the grievance investigated within thirty (30) days 
from the mailing date of the written appeal.  If the Board or the 


complainant deems it necessary, the complainant may appear before 
the Board of Directors. 


 
If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision of the Board, or if 


they wish to by-pass this complaint procedure completely, the 
complainant is free to file their claim with: 


  
 FLORIDA COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS 


 325 John Knox Road 


 Building F, Suite 240 
 Tallahassee, FL  32303 


 Telephone:   (904) 488-7082 
 


The above listed agencies follow a policy of strict confidentiality 
regarding any complaints filed in their offices.  No employee or 


applicant for employment shall in any way be discriminated against for 
filing or following through on any of the procedure involved in the 


complaint process. 
 


 Confidential and Proprietary Information 
 


It is the policy of the FKAHEC to require all employees, officers, 
directors and volunteers to respect the restricted nature of confidential 


and proprietary information as outlined in this policy.  The FKAHEC 


also will require that all employees, upon hire, sign statements 
acknowledging that they understand their duty in this regard 


(EXHIBIT B). This policy is also extended to all Directors, volunteers 
and contract employees.   


 
Confidential and proprietary information is crucial to the operation of 


the FKAHEC.   Furthermore, inappropriate or unauthorized use or 
disclosure could result in a violation of state or federal law, and /or 


civil liability to patients, physicians and others, potentially subjecting 
the employee and the FKAHEC to civil and/or criminal liability. 


 
 Progressive Counseling 


 







You are expected to meet employer standards for work performance, 


punctuality, attendance and personal conduct.  
 


Violations of Florida Keys AHEC policies and procedures are considered 
misconduct and appropriate progressive counseling procedures will be 


initiated.  Progressive counseling may include:  oral warning, written 
warning, probation, suspension with or without pay, and discharge.   


 
Progressive Counseling actions are noted in your personnel file.  These 


steps may not be sequential and some actions may warrant discharge 
without counseling. 


 
The following are some of examples of misconduct, which will lead to 


progressive counseling and/or discharge: 
 


 Supplying false or misleading information when applying for 


employment. 
 


 Possession or use of dangerous or deadly weapons on company 
premises or while performing company duties off the premises. 


 
 Using or possessing controlled substances either on company time 


or premises, drinking alcoholic beverages during work. 
 


 Excessive absenteeism or tardiness. 
 


 Disclosing confidential information. 
 


 Falsifying a time card or any other employer record. 
 


 Destruction or misuse of company property. 


 
 Immoral or indecent conduct, soliciting persons for immoral 


purposes or aiding and abetting any of the above. 
 


 Disruptive conduct on company premises: gambling, fighting, 
horseplay, coercion, intimidation or threats against supervisors or 


other employees, vulgarity, abusive treatment or discourtesy to a 
fellow employee. 


 
 Insubordination, including but not limited to, refusing to obey an 


order or directive of a supervisor. 
 







 Unauthorized use of property or money belonging to the FKAHEC, 


theft, misappropriation, and removal of company property or 
documents from the premises. 


 
 Grievance Procedures 


 
Employees of FKAHEC have the right to file grievances whenever they 


believe an injustice has arisen due to an unfair policy, a deviation from 
or misrepresentation of a policy, a disagreement with another 


employee or a supervisor, an unfair application of procedures or 
regulations, an unfair performance appraisal, or a policy or treatment 


that is discriminatory, and when informal attempts at resolution have 
failed. 


 
a) An employee with a grievance must first discuss the problem with 


their supervisor. 


 
b) If the employee is not satisfied with the decision of the 


supervisor, an appeal must be made within 10 days to the 
Executive Committee in writing. 


 
c) The Executive Director with a grievance must first discuss the 


problem with the Executive Committee. 
 


d) If the Executive Director is not satisfied with the decision of the 
Executive Committee, an appeal may be made in writing to the 


full Board of Directors with a decision being made within 30 days 
unless otherwise waived by the full Board. 


 
A written response by all supervising parties named above will be 


given to the requester and also made a part of the employee’s 
personnel file. 


 
 


 
 


 Personal Benefits 
 


 Paid Holidays 
 


Florida Keys AHEC officially recognizes the following nine National 
Holidays:   


 
New Year’s Day     Labor Day 


Presidents’ Day    Thanksgiving Day 







Martin Luther King’s Birthday  The Day After Thanksgiving 


 Memorial Day    Christmas Day   
Independence Day    


       
 


Religious holidays or other federal holidays not on this list may be 
taken by an employee, with advance permission of the supervisor, as 


an excused absence.  Accrued paid time off will be used.  If the 
employee does not have any accrued time he/she can elect to take the 


day off without pay. 
 


Employees who fail to work the scheduled date before, or scheduled 
day after a recognized holiday may be paid for the absence, only if pay 


is authorized by the supervisor. 
 


Holidays falling on Saturday will normally be observed on the 


preceding Friday.  Holidays falling on Sunday will normally be observed 
on the following Monday.  Employment shall not normally commence 


or terminate on a holiday. 
 


Holiday time is awarded as 8 hours.  Employees having a 10 hour work 
day will be given 8 hours of holiday time and either must use vacation 


time or make up the time off given in excess of 8 hours. 
 


 Paid Time Off 
 


Paid Time Off (PTO) provides both employees and the FKAHEC with a 
flexible method of scheduling time off with pay. 


 
There are three types of Paid Time Off: 


 


 Vacation 
 Personal Days 


 Sick Time 
 


 Annual Vacation 
All full-time employees shall accrue annual vacation time beginning the 


first day of employment, but is not available until after the probation 
period.  Vacation time is cumulative, and earned vacation time not 


used by the end of the fiscal year (July to June) may be carried over to 
the next year; however, the maximum amount of accrued vacation 


time may not exceed 192 hours.  Accrued vacation time above the 192 
hours maximum will be forfeited if not used by the end of the fiscal 


year.   







 


Annual vacation time shall be accrued according to the following 
schedule: 


 
 96 hours during the first and second years of  


employment at a rate of 8 hours per month 
 


 120 hours during the third and fourth years of  
employment at a rate of 10 hours per month 


 
160 hours during the fifth year of employment and  


thereafter at a rate of 13.4 hours per month 
 


Annual vacation time, although accrued, will not be available until after 
the probation period. 


 


Holidays falling during vacation periods will not be charged as vacation 
days. 


 
Permanent, part-time employees who work a minimum of 20 hrs/wk 


earn vacation time on a pro-rated basis determined by the number of 
hours worked. 


 
Requests for vacation must be approved by the Executive Director and 


should be submitted as much in advance as possible but in every case 
at least one month prior to the planned starting date.  The Executive 


Director will review annual vacation plans with each employee at the 
beginning of each fiscal year.  A vacation in excess of two weeks for 


the Executive Director must be approved by the Board President. 
 


Vacation time may not be taken by the Executive Director during the 


time period of writing the Federal competitive renewal grant 
application. 


 
 


 Personal Leave 
Each full time employee will be granted one (1) personal day off with 


pay each fiscal year.  A personal day off may not be taken during the 
probation period.  Personal days do not accumulate nor do they carry 


into the next fiscal year and the employee must give advance notice of 
the personal day off. 


 
 Sick Leave 







All full-time employees shall accrue sick leave beginning the first day 


of employment.  Sick leave is cumulative and earned at a rate of eight 
(8) hours per month.  Sick leave, although accrued, may not be taken 


until successful completion of the probation period. 
 


 
At the end of the fiscal year, each employee will have the option of 


converting unused sick leave accrued that year to vacation time.  One 
day of sick leave converts to one half day of vacation time.  A 


maximum of 8 days of sick leave may be converted to 4 days of 
vacation time per fiscal year.  Accrued sick leave not converted to 


vacation time will carry over to the next year; however, the maximum 
amount of accrued sick leave may not exceed 208 hours.  Accrued sick 


leave above the 208 hours maximum will be forfeited if not used by 
the end of the fiscal year.  Any sick leave converted to annual leave 


will not be subject to pay off upon separation of employment 


throughout the fiscal year.  
 


An absence of three or more consecutive days using sick leave must 
be supported by a physician’s statement upon request of the Executive 


Director. 
 


Excess or frequent use of sick leave will be subject to administrative 
review to determine the employee’s availability for employment. 


 
 Authorized Absence 


Military Duty – Up to fifteen working days may be granted for 
military reserve or National Guard active duty.  The pay received for 


such duty shall be deducted from the employee’s pay.  The employee 
may, at their option, elect to use vacation time in place of the military 


leave provision of these policies.  Should the employee elect to serve 


military duty on vacation time, the amount of military pay received will 
not be deducted from their paycheck. 


 
Jury Duty – Employees called to serve on jury duty will continue to 


receive their regular salary and benefits.  Compensation other than 
any travel allowance, which has been received while on jury duty, shall 


be deducted from the employee salary. 
 


If, on any day while serving jury duty, an employee is relieved from 
their duties as a juror prior to the normal office closing time, the 


employee is expected to report to work for the remainder of the work 
day.  Employees who receive a jury duty summons should inform the 







Executive Director immediately so that temporary employee 


arrangements may be made if necessary. 
 


Funeral Leave – Up to three (3) days with pay may be granted to 
attend the funeral of a member of the employee’s immediate family.  


Immediate family is defined to include spouse, children, parents, step-
parents, step-children, siblings, grandparents, in-laws, and legal 


guardians.  Paid funeral leave will not be granted during the first three 
months of employment. 


 
Leave of Absence – Permanent full-time, and permanent part-time 


employees who have been employed longer than one year are eligible 
for a leave of absence without pay.  The length of an authorized leave 


of absence without pay will be determined by the Executive Director 
for all other employees and by the Board of Directors for the Executive 


Director, based on the individual merits of each application.  At the 


end of the leave of  absence without pay, the employee must return to 
work.  Any employee who does not return to work at this time will be 


considered to have voluntarily quit.  Following the leave of absence 
without pay, every effort will be made to reinstate the employee to 


their former position or a position with comparable skills, 
responsibilities and pay, provided that such a position is available and 


the employee is qualified. 
 


The five (5) types of leave of absence without pay that may be 
requested are: 


  
  Educational 


  Military 
  Maternity 


  Personal 


  Extended Illness (personal or immediate family) 
 


All benefits accrued prior to the beginning of a leave of absence 
without pay will be preserved throughout the time of the absence.  No 


accrual of additional benefits will occur during any leave of absence 
without pay.  The employee will be responsible for making 


arrangements for continuation of group life, health, and disability 
insurance coverage.  Payment of full premiums for coverage shall be 


the responsibility of the employee.  Payment must be made in advance 
on a monthly basis and failure to pay these premiums shall result in 


termination of coverage. 
 


 Flex Time (Comp time has been eliminated) 







 


Exempt employees are expected to work the number of hours 
necessary to accomplish designated tasks, but are eligible to adjust 


time with written approval from the CEO.   
 


 
 Religious Observances 


Time off for recognized religious observances may be taken, with prior 
approval, by the Executive Director.  The time taken may be charged 


to vacation time or taken as time off without pay. 
 


 
 Absenteeism/Tardiness 


 
You are expected to be at work at your scheduled time each day and 


attendance is an essential requirement at your job.  Tardiness, 


excessive absenteeism, extended lunch hours, and leaving early 
without supervisory approval will not be tolerated. 


 
If you will be absent from work due to illness or personal reasons, you 


are required to contact your supervisor or call the main office and give 
the reason for your absence as far in advance of your starting time as 


possible.  If you will be out for more than a day, you are expected to 
contact your supervisor on a daily basis to inform him or her of your 


status or submit a doctor’s note, which sets forth the period of 
absence.  It is your responsibility to ensure that proper notification is 


given.  Except under emergency conditions, asking another employee, 
friend or relative to give notice on your behalf is not proper 


notification.  If you fail to give proper notification of your absence for 3 
consecutive workdays or 3 non-consecutive workdays within a year, it 


will be assumed that you have voluntarily resigned from your 


employment. 
 


 PTO Pay Upon Resignation 
 


A resignation is voluntary termination of employment.  An employee is 
required to give written notice of intent to resign, and must work 


during the notice period.  All full time exempt staff are expected to 
give a minimum of four weeks notice. 


 
Employees who resign with proper notice will be paid for any unused 


Vacation hours at a maximum of 192 hours at their current hourly 
rate.  Any employee who resigns prior to completing 6 months of 


service will forfeit any accrued vacation hours.  Eligibility to take 







vacation/personal hours is suspended during the required notice 


period.  
 


If the best interest of the FKAHEC would be served by not requiring 
the employee to work during the notice period, the Supervisor or 


Executive Director may elect to waive the required resignation notice, 
however this waiver will not result in forfeiture of separation pay.  


Failure to provide proper written notice will result in forfeiture of 
separation pay.   


 
 PTO Pay Upon Discharge, Termination or Dismissal 


 
A discharge or dismissal is involuntary termination of employment.  An 


employee who is discharged for failure to meet the requirements of 
the job or misconduct will forfeit all allotted separation benefits. 


 


Employees who are absent and fail to contact the Supervisor for three 
consecutive workdays or 3 non-consecutive workdays in a 12 month 


period will be considered as having abandoned their positions, and 
employment will be terminated.  The employee will forfeit all allotted 


Vacation/Personal Days benefits. 
 


 Separation Pay  
 


Occasionally a situation may arise whereby the FKAHEC would find it 
necessary to discharge an employee in good standing.  If the 


employee has completed twelve (12) months of employment, notice or 
pay in lieu of notice may be granted on a case by case basis not to 


exceed hours, calculated to the time earned given of discharge. 
 


 
 Termination Voluntary or Involuntary 
 


A resignation is voluntary termination of employment and a discharge 


or dismissal is involuntary termination of employment.  In either 
instance a Separation Check List will be completed for each employee 


that is terminated (EXHIBIT C). 
 


 PTO Pay Upon Death 
 


Final payment for hours worked and all unused vacation days, in 
accordance with separation policies, will be calculated to the time of 


death and will be paid to the employee’s estate.  The family should 
contact Florida Keys AHEC for information and assistance.  







 


 
 Personal Benefits 


 
The following personnel employment benefits will be provided to each 


full time employee of the FKAHEC: 
 


Health Insurance – Provided to each employee who is approved for 
coverage by the organization’s health insurance carrier.  Upon 


acceptance for coverage by the carrier, the employee may apply to 
have his/her spouse and dependents covered by the insurance and 


premiums for such coverage are to be paid for in full by the employee 
via payroll deduction. 


 
Application may be made upon employment and will be effective upon 


acceptance by the organization’s carrier and satisfactory completion of 


three (3) months of the probation period (coverage to begin the first 
of the month following the completion of three (3) months). 


 
Life Insurance – Term life insurance in the amount of $50,000.00. 


 
Application may be made upon employment and will be effective upon 


acceptance by the organization’s carrier and satisfactory completion of 
three (3) months of the probation period (coverage to begin the first 


of the month following the completion of three (3) months). 
 


 
Disability Insurance-A Disability Insurance plan is provided to each 


employee who is approved for coverage by the organization’s 
insurance carrier.  Upon acceptance for coverage by the carrier the 


FKAHEC will contribute toward the benefit until separation.  The policy 


value will be based on the carrier’s plan and formula. 
 


Application may be made upon employment and will be effective upon 
acceptance by the organization’s carrier and satisfactory completion of 


three (3) months of the probation period (coverage to begin the first 
of the month following the completion of three (3) months). 


 
Deferred Compensation – A Deferred Compensation plan (SEP Plan) 


is available to every employee who wishes to participate.  The FKAHEC 
will contribute 7% of an employee’s salary after the successful 


completion of one year’s employment (12 consecutive months).  The 
employee may chose to have additional funds contributed to the plan 


via payroll deduction as allowed by the policy. 







 


Worker’s Compensation – If an employee is injured while working, 
they will receive benefits provided by a Worker’s Compensation 


insurance policy.  These benefits include the cost of medical bills 
associated with the injury as well as compensation for loss of earnings, 


if the employee is disabled and unable to work for more than seven (7) 
days, at the rate of 66 2/3% of the employee’s normal salary, limited 


to the maximum as set by law.  During the seven day waiting period, 
an employee may elect to use accrued sick leave and vacation time to 


receive normal salary. 
 


Unemployment Compensation Insurance – Employees who are 
laid off or terminated through no fault of their own may be entitled to 


unemployment compensation benefits under Florida law.  The cost of 
unemployment compensation insurance is paid by the FKAHEC for its 


employees.  When eligible, terminated employees receive income 


benefits based on the amount of wages they received while employed 
with the FKAHEC. 


 
Social Security Insurance – Social Security insurance deductions 


are made from all employee’s paychecks equivalent to 7.65% of their 
gross pay.  An equal amount is contributed by the FKAHEC to each 


employee’s Federal Social Security account. 
 


All benefits will be terminated as of the date of separation. 
 


 Professional Development and Training 
 


All employees of the Center are encouraged to take advantage of 


opportunities for professional growth and skill improvement associated 
with their job functions.  Local resources should be used to the extent 


possible for training and development.  In addition, any employee may 
submit a request to participate in other training programs, 


conferences, seminars, or courses necessary for their job performance.  
These requests need to be made at least 45 days in advance to allow 


for adequate coverage of duties and responsibilities.  In addition, 
during the employee's annual evaluation he/she will discuss their plans 


in this area for the following year to allow for appropriate budgeting in 


this area.  Elective training programs should be directed at enhancing 
the employee's job performance by improving effectiveness and 


efficiency. 
 


The organization reserves the right to approve or decline the requests 
regardless of any prior agreement based on but not limited to the 







following criteria:  availability of funds, relevance of request for job 


performance, and adequate coverage of duties. 
 


  The Executive Director will prepare a training budget based on 
anticipated employee needs and present it to the Board of Directors for 


approval. 
 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 Community Board Participation 
 


FKAHEC Staff is encouraged to participate on the Board of Directors of 
Community and/or Professional organizations that assist the FKAHEC 


meeting its intended Mission.  Each staff member participating on a 
Board, Committee, Task Force etc. will be required to get permission in 


writing from the Executive Director each year prior to continuing on if 
the FKAHEC is allowing compensated time to be used to participate 


with the organization.  Staff members must present in a written format 
how their participation and the organization in which they participate 


on promotes the Mission of the FKAHEC. 
 


 Personal Vehicle Use/Expense 


 
Florida Keys AHEC requires certain full-time office-based employees, 


as a contracted job function, to use personal vehicles for purposes of 
transportation between FKAHEC work sites, meeting places and special 


work related functions.  Any full-time employee who uses a privately 
owned vehicle for work purposes must provide the main office with a 


copy of the following information: 


 
1. Current Driver’s License and; 


2. Current Car Insurance 
 


In addition, the organization expects all its employees to use prudent 
judgment regarding maintain their personal vehicle in safe operating 


order and observing all road rules and traffic laws, not operating 
vehicles while under the influence, and wearing seatbelts.   


 
Any full-time regular office-based employee who uses a privately 


owned vehicle for work purposes is entitled to mileage reimbursement 
at the rate approved by the FKAHEC.  Work purpose is defined as any 


miles driven from the full-time office-based employees’ permanent 
FKAHEC work site to another work required site and return trip.  Full-


time employees must complete and submit for approval a mileage 







reimbursement request form to the FKAHEC’s Office Manager for 


approval by the Executive Director.  
 


 Solicitation/Distribution 
 


Solicitations will not be permitted during work time or during non-work 
time in areas where it will disturb other employees who are working.  
Distribution or circulation of printed material by employees will not be 


permitted during work time or during non-work times in areas where it 
will disturb other employees who are working, nor will distribution be 


permitted at any time, including work and non-work time, in working 


areas. 


"Work time" refers to that portion of any workday during which an 
employee is supposed to be performing actual job duties; it does not 


include other duty-free periods of time. 


Solicitation and distribution by non-employees on FKAHEC property or 


within the confines of FKAHEC premises is strictly prohibited, unless 
specifically authorized. 


 
 E-mail and Communications 


 


The FKAHEC provides various information technology resources to its 
employees and other authorized persons to facilitate the creation and 


communication of business-related data in the most effective and 
efficient manner possible.  As means develop to transmit more data in 


less time and with less formality, we all must put more effort to 
maintaining the accuracy, security and control of data.  We also must 


ensure that use of FKAHEC information technology resources is 
appropriate and professional.  This is especially true because electronic 


communications tend to be more immediate and informal than written 
communications and because passwords and deletion functions create 


the illusion of privacy and control.  Relatedly, although the Internet 
can be a valuable information resource for legitimate business, 


research and information sharing, it also presents a significant 
opportunity for abuse, lost productivity and potential liability for the 


FKAHEC and its Employees. 


 
In light of these concerns, the FKAHEC has developed this Policy, 


which establishes the parameters for proper use of information 
technology resources.  Employees and other authorized persons who 


do not comply with this Policy are subject to the revocation of their 
access to FKAHEC information technology resources and disciplinary 







action up to and including discharge.  (SEE THE ATTACHED FLORIDA KEYS 


AHEC’S INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES POLICY-EXHIBIT D) 
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Licensee Details


Licensee Information


Name: SMITH BUZZI & ASSOCIATES LLC (Primary Name)


Main Address: PO BOX 144633 


CORAL GABLES  Florida  33114


County: DADE


License Mailing:


LicenseLocation:


License Information


License Type: FIRM


Rank: CPA Firms


License Number: AD67057


Status: Current


Licensure Date: 03/10/2011


Expires: 12/31/2019


Special Qualifications Qualification Effective


Corporation 03/10/2011


Alternate Names


View Related License Information


View License Complaint


2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee FL 32399 :: Email: Customer Contact Center :: Customer Contact Center: 850.487.1395


The State of Florida is an AA/EEO employer. Copyright 2007-2010 State of Florida. Privacy Statement


Under Florida law, email addresses are public records. If you do not want your email address released in response to a public-records 
request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact the office by phone or by traditional mail. If you have any 


questions, please contact 850.487.1395. *Pursuant to Section 455.275(1), Florida Statutes, effective October 1, 2012, licensees 
licensed under Chapter 455, F.S. must provide the Department with an email address if they have one. The emails provided may be 
used for official communication with the licensee. However email addresses are public record. If you do not wish to supply a personal 


address, please provide the Department with an email address which can be made available to the public. 


Page 1 of 1DBPR - SMITH BUZZI & ASSOCIATES LLC, FIRM


4/1/2019https://www.myfloridalicense.com/LicenseDetail.asp?SID=&id=7EF6E44A8D184EEBD48...
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 Hanover  Professionals  


Risk Purchasing Group Program  


 


FLORIDA DECLARATIONS 
 


ACCOUNTANTS PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY POLICY 
THIS POLICY PROVIDES COVERAGE ON A CLAIMS-MADE BASIS. SUBJECT TO ITS TERMS, THIS POLICY 
APPLIES ONLY TO CLAIMS FIRST MADE AGAINST THE INSUREDS DURING THE POLICY PERIOD OR ANY 
APPLICABLE EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD. THE LIMIT OF LIABILITY CAN BE COMPLETELY EXHAUSTED BY 
CLAIMS EXPENSES AND CLAIMS EXPENSES WILL BE APPLIED AGAINST THE DEDUCTIBLE, UNLESS 
OTHERWISE ENDORSED.  WE WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS EXPENSES OR THE AMOUNT OF ANY 
JUDGEMENT OR SETTLEMENT IN EXCESS OF THE APPLICABLE LIMIT OF LIABILITY.  PLEASE READ THE 
ENTIRE POLICY CAREFULLY  


 


RISK PURCHASING GROUP NOTICE 


This Accountants Professional Liability Risk Purchasing Group Policy is not protected by an 


insurance insolvency guaranty fund in this state, and the Risk Purchasing Group may not be 


subject to all the insurance laws and rules of this state. 


 


IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING RISK PURCHASING GROUPS 


Disclosure Pursuant to Federal Law Regarding Purchasing Groups [15 U.S.C. SEC. 3901, et seq] 


the National Small Business PG, Inc. is a “Purchasing Group”, as defined under Federal law, 


formed to purchase liability insurance on a group basis for its Members to cover the similar or 


related liability exposure(s) to which the Members of the Purchasing Group are exposed by 


virtue of their related, similar, or common businesses or services.  Members do not share limits 


and each member is provided with its own policy and/or evidence of insurance. 
 


 


Policy Number Coverage is provided by: Agency Agency Code 


LHN D332679 01 
Hanover Insurance Company 


440 Lincoln Street 
Worcester, MA 01653 


McGowan & Co. Inc. 3202024 


 


Item 1. NAMED INSURED AND ADDRESS: 


Smith, Buzzi & Associates, LLC 
9425 Sunset Drive; Suite 180 
Miami, FL  33173 


Item 2. POLICY PERIOD: 


Inception Date:  08/01/2018 


Expiration Date:  08/01/2019 


12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the named insured as stated herein. 


Item 3. LIMIT OF LIABILITY: 
 a. $1,000,000     for each claim; not to exceed 


b. $1,000,000     for all claims in the Aggregate 


Item 4. SUBLIMITS OF LIABILITY: 


 a. $50,000 Regulatory Proceedings Coverage for each regulatory proceeding and $100,000 in the Aggregate 


b. $50,000 Employment Practice Coverage for each claim and in the Aggregate 


c. $50,000 Crisis Event Coverage for each crisis event and in the Aggregate 
 


915-0901FL 05 17 Page 1 of 2 


 







 


 Hanover  Professionals  
Risk Purchasing Group Program  


 
Item 5. SUPPLEMENTAL COVERAGE LIMITS OF LIABILITY: 


 a. $100,000 Privacy Event Coverage for each privacy event and in the Aggregate 


b. $1,000,000 Network Security Coverage for each claim and in the Aggregate 


c. $100,000 Reimbursement for Loss of Income Coverage for all insureds and in the Aggregate 


Item 6. DEDUCTIBLE: $5,000  each claim $5,000  Aggregate 


Item 7. RETROACTIVE DATE:  08/01/2010  


Item 8. PREMIUM FOR THE POLICY PERIOD:  


 Annual Premium: $4,738.00 


 Taxes/State fees:        $0.00 


Total: $4,738.00 
 
 


Item 9. OPTIONAL EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD 


a. Additional Period:  12 Months   


b. Additional Premium:  100% of Annual Premium   
 


Item 10. NOTICE OF A CLAIM 


Report any claim or potential claim to the Company as required by Section G. DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF 
CLAIM(S) OR POTENTIAL CLAIM(S): 


 


The Hanover Insurance Company 
P.O. Box 15148 
Worcester, MA  01615 - 0148 
 


National Claims Telephone Number:  800-628-0250 
Facsimile:  800-399-4734 
Email:  ProClaim@hanover.com 
 


PRODUCER NAME AND ADDRESS: 
Gary Sutherland 
McGowan & Co, Inc. 
150 Speen Street, Suite 102 
Framingham, MA 01701 


   
Florida Producer License#: R041388 
 
 


Agent's Signature:     
(may be signed electronically) 


 


Item 11. FORMS ATTACHED AT ISSUE: 
401-1268 (08-12)   
915-0001 (02-12)   
915-0006 (02-12)   
915-0020 (02-12)   
915-0062 (06-12)   
915-0087 (02-12)   
915-0088 (02-12)   
915-0108FL (02-12)   
915-0135 (02-12)   
915-0902FL (05-17)   
 
915-0907 (05-17)   
915-0915 (10-17)   
SIG-1100 (11-17)  


U.S. Treasury Department's Office Of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC)  
Accountants Professional Liability Policy Form  
Amendment of Settlement - CEIL Endorsement  
Damages And Claims Expenses Deductible Endorsement  
Florida - State Amendatory Endorsement  
Additional Insured Endorsement  
Exclusion - Specific Individuals Or Entities  
Florida Reliance on Application  
Notice To Florida Insureds  
CPAOnePro Plus Endorsement (Florida) (Claim Expenses Included in the Limit of 
Liability)  
Enhanced Network Security Breach And Privacy Liability Coverage  
Information Regarding Extended Reporting Period Endorsement (ERP Coverage)  
Signature Page  
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August 27, 2018 


Julio Buzzi
Smith Buzzi & Associates, LLC 
9425 SW 72nd ST Ste 180
Miami, FL 33173-3290


Dear Julio Buzzi: 


It is my pleasure to notify you that on August 23, 2018, the Florida Peer Review Committee accepted the
report on the most recent System Review of your firm. The due date for your next review is  June 30,
2021. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted to the
administering entity. 


As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committee asked me to convey its
congratulations to the firm.
 
  
Thank you for your cooperation.


Sincerely,


Peer Review Team
FICPA Peer Review Committee
paul@ficpa.org 800-342-3197 ext. 251


Florida Institute of CPAs


CC: Ileana Alvarez


Firm Number:  900255105800   Review Number:  557243
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BYLAWS 


 


FLORIDA KEYS 


AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC. 


 


ARTICLE I 


 


Section 1.  DEFINITIONS. 


The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings unless otherwise required by 


the context in which they may be used: 


 


1.1  Articles of Incorporation.  The term “Articles of Incorporation” shall mean the 


Original Articles of Incorporation filed with the Department of State of Florida on the 


25th day of January, 1990, and any amendments thereto. 


 


1.2.  Board.  The term “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Corporation. 


 


1.3.  Board Committee.  The term “Board Committee” shall mean the body whose 


members are appointed as hereinafter provided and which may be authorized to exercise a 


designated portion of the authority of the Board when the Board is not in session. 


 


1.4.  Bylaws.  The term “Bylaws” shall mean the Bylaws of the Corporation except where 


reference is specifically made to the bylaws of another entity or unit. 


 


1.5.  Director.  The term “Director” shall mean an individual who is a Director of the 


Corporation as described in Article IV. 


 


1.6.  Corporation.  The term “Corporation” shall mean Florida Keys Area Health 


Education Center, Inc. (FKAHEC Keys AHEC), a Florida corporation not for profit. 


 


1.7.  Majority.  The term “Majority” shall mean fifty-one percent (51%) of the applicable 


total number. 


 


1.8.  Officer.  The term “Officer” shall mean one or more of the positions as provided in 


Article VII. 


 


1.9.  Chair. The term “Chair” shall mean the Chair of the Corporation set forth in Article 


VII. 


 


1.10.  State.  The term “State” shall mean the State of Florida. 
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Section 2.  Mission and Goals. 


The Corporation is organized for charitable, educational and scientific purposes within 


the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 


(“Code”) (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue 


Law). 


 
The mission of the Florida Keys AHEC is to effectively promote health and wellness through education, 


health assessments, and professional development using partnerships and other contract-funded services, 


resulting in a healthier, better educated community. 


 


Without in any way limiting the foregoing general purposes, the specific purpose of the 


corporation is to: 


A.  Assess the health needs of the area served by the center and assist in the 


planning and development of training programs to meet such needs; 


 


 B.  Develop or participate in programs designed to enhance the recruitment of 


 students into professional training programs; 


 


 C.  Arrange and support educational opportunities for medical and other 


students/residents at health facilities, community health centers, and health 


agencies throughout the area served by the center; 


 


D.  Provide continuing medical education and other educational support services 


to physicians and other health professionals practicing within the area served by 


the center. 


 


 E. Encourage the utilization of advanced practice health professionals within the 


area served by the center and the recruitment of individuals for training in such 


professions; 


 


 F.  Promote specific initiatives in special areas as designated by State Health 


priorities and/or local needs. 


 


G.  Provide for, conduct or support training in health education services as 


designated by State Health priorities and/or local needs.  


 


H.  Provide direct medical services and counseling programs through identified 


financial support addressing community health needs.    


       


 


           


Section 3.  Powers of the Corporation 


Except as limited by the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Corporation shall 


have and exercise all rights and powers in furtherance of its purposes as are now or may 


hereafter be conferred on not-for-profit corporations under the laws of the State of 
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Florida.  The Corporation shall, when possible, carry out its exempt purposes through 


arrangements with the University of Miami, A Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation. 


 


Section 4.  Limitations on Activities 


4.1  No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be 


distributable to, any Director or officer of the Corporation or any other private individual 


(except that reasonable compensation may be paid for services rendered to or for the 


Corporation effecting one or more of its purposes), and no Director or officer of the 


Corporation, or any other private individual, shall be entitled to share in the distribution 


of any of the corporate assets on dissolution of the Corporation; provided, however, the 


dissolution or otherwise, upon any not-for-profit corporation described in Section 


501(c)(3) and Section 170(c)(2) of the Code and specified of the Corporation shall be the 


carrying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the 


Corporation shall not participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 


publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of any candidate for public office. 


 


4.2  Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles of Incorporation, the 


Corporation shall not conduct or carry on any activities not permitted to be conducted or 


carried on by an organization exempt from taxation under 501(c)(3) of the Code, or by an 


organization contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Code. 


 


4.3  Upon dissolution of the Corporation, the Directors of the Corporation shall, after 


paying or making provisions for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, 


distribute all residual assets of the Corporation as contractually obligated.  


 


At discretion of the Directors to such organization or organizations organized and 


operated exclusively for charitable, educational, religious, or scientific purposes which, at 


the time of such disposition, qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under 


Section 501(c)(3), Section 170(c)(2), and Section 509(a)(1) or (2) of the Internal Revenue 


Code of 1986 or corresponding Sections of any prior or future Internal Revenue Code by 


reason of such organization or organizations providing health related services, or the 


federal, state or local government for exclusive public purpose.  Any assets not so 


disposed of shall be disposed of by a court of competent jurisdiction exclusively for such 


charitable purposes, or to such organization or organizations organized and operated 


exclusively for such charitable purposes, as said court shall determine.   


       


 


ARTICLE II 


 


OFFICERS AND REGISTERED AGENT 


 


The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State a registered office and 


registered agent (whose office shall be identical with such registered office) and may have 


such other offices within or without the State as the Board may from time to time 


determine. 
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ARTICLE III 


 


MEMBERSHIP 


 


Unless changed by amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, the membership of the 


Board of Directors shall be comprised of persons with an interest in health care either 


directly or indirectly as providers and consumers. All members of the Board of Directors 


shall be elected by a majority vote of the then existing members of the Corporation.  


 


ARTICLE IV 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS 


 


Section 4.1  GENERAL POWERS.  All of the business and affairs of the Corporation 


shall be managed by the Board of Directors in a manner consistent with these Bylaws and 


other applicable law.  The Board shall make appropriate delegations of authority to the 


Officers and, to the extent permitted by law, by appropriate resolution, the Board may 


authorize one or more Board Committees to act on its behalf when it is not in session. 


 


Section 4.2  NUMBER AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS   


The Board of Directors shall consist of at least seven (7) but no more than twenty-one 


(21) persons.  All members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by a majority of the 


then serving Board of Directors.  Directors shall be elected or appointed to office for a 


term of three (3) consecutive years commencing their election or appointment.  Directors 


may serve additional three year terms as nominated and re-elected by a majority of the 


then serving Board of Directors. 


           


The Board of Directors shall always include an Institutional representative from each of 


the three Florida Keys Hospitals, Monroe County School Board/District and the Florida 


Keys Community College as the organization(s) wish to participate.  These five Directors 


shall be recommended by the CEO, President or Chairperson of the Board of their 


respective organizations. and must serve in an administrative capacity on that 


organization. Recommended potential Board members will be approved and voted on by 


the entire Board of Directors.  Institutional members serving more than two consecutive 


terms must present a letter to reaffirm the approval of their continuous participation prior 


to re-election by their CEO, President or Board Chair. 


 


The Executive Director of the Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc. will be a 


non-voting ex officio member of the Board of Directors. See section 4.13. 


 


Section 4.3.  REGULAR MEETINGS.  An annual meeting of the Board shall be held 


each year for the purpose of electing or appointing Directors, electing Officers, and for 


the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting.  The Board shall 


also have regular meetings, the frequency of which is consistent with the needs of the 
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Corporation and, unless the Board shall provide otherwise by resolution, regular meetings 


of the Board shall be held at least four times per year including the annual meeting.  The 


four quarterly meetings will be scheduled at the annual meeting which shall take place in 


May. Board members may participate in noticed meetings by teleconference or 


videoconference with appropriate notice to Center staff. 


 


 


Section 4.4.  SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the Board may be called by or 


at the direction of the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Executive Director, or the written request 


of one third of the Directors.  


 


Section 4.5. NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETINGS. Written notice to all Directors shall be 


given seven (7) days in advance by mail, email or other electronic form.   


       


The attendance of a member of the Board at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of 


notice of such meeting, except where a member of the Board attends a meeting for the 


express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the ground that the 


meeting is not lawfully called or convened.  Neither the business to be transacted at, nor 


the purpose of any regular or special meeting of the Board, need be specified in the notice 


of such meeting. 


 


Section 4.6.  QUORUM.  At least thirty-three and one third percent (33 1/3%) of the 


members of the Board, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any 


regular or special meeting of the Board, unless otherwise specifically provided by law, the 


Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.  Attendance shall be either in person or by 


telephone connection, videoconferencing system or any other electronic connection that 


allows whereby the distant Director(s) and those Directors present in person all hear and 


may speak to and be heard on the matters raised therein.  If less than thirty-three and one 


third percent (33 1/3%) of the members of the Board are present at such meeting, fifty-


one percent (51%) of the members of the Board present may adjourn the meeting from 


time to time without further notice, until a quorum shall be present.   


 


Section 4.7.  MANNER OF ACTING. 


4.7-1.  Formal Action by Board.  The act of the majority of the members of the Board 


present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, unless the 


act of a greater number is required by statute, the Articles of Incorporation or these 


Bylaws. 


 


4.7-2.  Informal Action by Board.  No action of the Board shall be valid unless taken at a 


meeting at which a quorum is present, except that any action which may be taken at a 


meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing either signed 


or through e-mail (setting forth the action so taken) shall be signed by all members of the 


Board. 
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Section 4.8.  RESIGNATIONS AND REMOVAL.  Any member of the Board may resign 


from the Board at any time by giving written notice to the Chair, Executive Director or 


the Secretary and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation 


shall not be necessary to make it effective.  Any member of the Board may be removed 


from office at any time with or without cause by 51% vote of the entire Board of 


Directors.   


 


Section 4.9.  VACANCIES.  Any vacancy occurring in the membership of the Board may 


be filled by a majority vote of the Board upon recommendation of the Nominating 


Committee appointed by the Chair of the Board of Directors 


           


Section 4.10.  COMPENSATION.  Members of the Board, as such, shall not receive any 


stated salaries for their services, but by resolution of the Board a reasonable amount may 


be allowed as reimbursement of expenses incurred in attending to their authorized duties.  


 


Section 4.11.  PROCEDURE.  The Board may adopt its own rules of procedure, which 


shall not be inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or applicable 


law.  In the absence of the Board adopting its own special rules of procedure as provided 


for herein, the Board will conduct its affairs in a manner which is fair and equitable to all 


Directors. 


 


Section 4.12.  ATTENDANCE.  Members of the Board may not have three consecutive 


absences or more than seven absences in a three year term.  Any Member having more 


than the allowable absences may be asked to resign or may be removed from the Board in 


accordance to Section 4.8.  Members of the Board may attend Board meetings by 


telephone or other electronic mechanism as available. 


 


Section 4.13. VOTING.  Members of the Board who are present at any meeting, whether 


in person or by telephonic, radio, or similar communication, shall be entitled to one (1) 


vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the Board members.  Should there be a tie in 


the voting, the Agency Executive Director will be able to cast one (1) vote only as a 


tiebreaker.  No other voting privileges will be extended to the Executive Director as 


aforementioned in Section 4.2.  Should the issue to be voted on be about the Executive 


Director, the Executive Director will abstain and the vote will take place among the Full 


Board. 


 


Proxies are prohibited in voting on Board matters. 


 


ARTICLE V 


 


COMMITTEES 


 


Section 5.1.  DESIGNATION.  The Chair of the Board may, from time to time, designate 


committees for the Corporation including but not limited to the following: 
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 A. Executive Committee 


 B. Education/Planning Health Services Committee 


C. Finance Committee 


D. Nominating/Membership Committee 


E. By-Laws/Policy Committee 


E. Marketing/PR Committee 


 


Section 5.2.  FUNCTIONS.  Except with respect to an Executive Committee or where a 


committee is specifically delegated authority to act when the Directors are not in session, 


committees shall serve in an advisory capacity to the Directors regarding those aspects of 


the business and affairs of the Corporation to which they have been delegated 


responsibility. 


 


Section 5.3.  DUTIES OF COMMITTEES.  The duties of each committee may be as 


follows: 


 


5.3-1.  Executive Committee.  An Executive Committee is designated to have and 


exercise, when the Board of Directors are not in session and prudent management 


requires prompt action, all of the authority of the Board of Directors in the management 


of the Corporation, as such authority is limited by resolution of the Board of Directors.  


The Executive Committee will provide on an annual basis a formal performance 


evaluation of the Executive Director.  All actions of the Executive Committee shall be 


forwarded to the full Board of Directors and shall be placed on the agenda of the next 


scheduled meeting.  Actions of the Executive Committee are limited to those decisions 


that must be made on behalf of the full Board prior to a regular meeting. 


 


5.3-2.  Education/Planning Health Services Committee.  This Committee is designated to 


assist in the preparation and modification of a long-range and short-range plan to assure 


that the Corporation’s programs are attuned to meeting the needs of the community 


served by the corporation, coordinating the Corporation’s services with those of other 


organizations and related community resources. 


 


           


5.3-3.  Finance Committee.  A Finance Committee is designated to: 


 


A.  Counsel with the Officers of the Corporation on both current and long-term 


fiscal affairs and make recommendations to the Directors concerning the fiscal 


affairs of the Corporation; 


 


B.  Review and make recommendations concerning the financial feasibility of 


corporate projects, acts, and undertakings referred to it by the Directors; 


 


 C.  Review the capital budgets and the operating budgets of the Corporation and 


 report thereon to the Directors; 
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 D.  Review the financial statements of the Corporation and appraise the 


 Corporation’s operating performance; 


 


 E.  Consider, when requested, matters relating to rate structure, credit and 


 collections, costs, capital financing, financial reporting, internal controls, and 


 internal and external audit of the Corporation and report thereon to the 


 Directors; 


 


 F.  Review and make recommendations concerning the policies and agencies for 


 the management of the operating, investment, endowment, and trust funds of the 


 Corporations, and 


 


 G.  Perform such other duties related to fiscal matters as may be assigned by the 


 Directors or by the Executive Committee. 


 


5.3-4.1. Nominating/Membership Committee.  Nominating /Membership Committee 


is designated to: 


A. Make and receive recommendations of officers/members of the Corporation at 


the annual meeting. 


B. Make and receive recommendations for vacancies of the Board of Directors. 


 


5.3-5   By-Laws/Policy Committee:  The By-Laws/Policy Committee is designated to 


review, revise and recommend changes to the Board of Directors on an annual basis. 


 


5.3-6.  Additional Marketing/PR Committees.  Additional committees which are 


designated by the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee pursuant hereto shall 


discharge such responsibilities as may be assigned to them by the authority establishing 


said committees. Committee will be formed to assist the organization with Marketing and 


PR strategies to increase visibility of the organization and its programs. 


 


Section 5.4.  POWERS.  A committee shall have and may exercise all the authority 


granted to it by the authority establishing said committee, except that no committee shall 


have the authority to: 


 


 A.  Approve any actions or proposals required by law of the Articles of 


 Incorporation to be approved by the Board; 


 


 B.  Fill vacancies in the membership of the Board or any committee; 


 


 C.  Adopt, amend, or repeal these Bylaws; 


 


 D.  Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors; or 


           


E.  Act on matters committed by these Bylaws or resolution of the Directors to 


said Directors or to another committee. 
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Section 5.5.  APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS.  As committees are 


deemed necessary or appropriate, the Chair shall appoint committee members, who may 


or may not be Directors, and shall designate a Chair of each committee; provided, 


however, the following shall apply: 


 


5.5-1.  The appointments to any committee, delegated authority to act on behalf of the 


Corporation, including, but not limited to, the Executive Committee, shall be designated 


by the Directors from among their number; 


 


5.5-2.  The Executive Committee shall include the Executive Officers of the Corporation.  


 


5.5-3.  The Finance Committee shall include the Treasurer among its numbers. 


 


5.5-4.  The Executive Director may will be an ex officio, nonvoting member of all 


committees. 


 


Section 5.6.  TENURE OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS.  The members and Chairs of each 


committee shall take office on the day of their appointment and hold office until the next 


succeeding annual meeting of the Board or their successors shall have been appointed or 


until their earlier resignation, removal from office, or death, or until the committee has 


been dissolved. 


 


Section 5.7.  RESIGNATION OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS.  Any committee member 


may resign by providing written notification of such resignation to the Chair or Secretary, 


and any such resignation shall become effective immediately upon receipt of said written 


notification or at such later day as may be specified in the notification. 


 


Section 5.8.  REMOVAL OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS.  Any committee member may 


be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by 51% vote of the entire 


Board of Directors. 


 


Section 5.9.  VACANCIES.  Vacancies may be filled by vote of the Executive Committee 


or the full Board of Directors.  Vacancies on the Executive Committee may only be filled 


by a two-thirds vote of the entire Board of Directors. 


 


 


           


Section 5.10.  COMPENSATION.  Committee members shall not receive any stated 


salaries for their services, but a reasonable amount may be allowed for reimbursement of 


expenses incurred in attending to their authorized duties.  


 


ARTICLE VI 


 


COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
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Section 6.1.  MEETINGS.  Meetings of any committee may be called at any time by: 


 a. The Chair of the committee; 


 b. Any two (2) committee members; 


 c. The Executive Director; or 


 d. The Chair of the Corporation. 


 


Section 6.2.  PLACE OF MEETINGS.  Committee meetings shall be held at the principal 


place of business of the Corporation.  


 


Section 6.3.  NOTICE OF MEETINGS.  Written notice of committee meetings shall be 


given and shall be mailed, emailed or by other electronic form to each member of that 


committee at least seven (7) days in advance.  Board members may participate in noticed 


meetings by teleconference or videoconference with appropriate notice to Center staff. 


 


           


 


Section 6.4.  WAIVER OF NOTICE. The attendance of a member of the Board at any 


meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a member of 


the Board attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any 


business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.  Neither the 


business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of any regular or special meeting of the 


Board, need be specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting. 


 


 


Section 6.5.  ADJOURNED MEETING.  A majority of the committee members present, 


whether or not a quorum exists, may adjourn any meeting of a committee to another time 


and place.  Notice of any such adjourned meeting shall be given to all committee 


members, whether or not present at the time of the adjournment. 


 


Section 6.6.  QUORUM.  A majority of the number of committee members entitled to 


vote, as fixed by these Bylaws, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at 


any committee meeting, unless otherwise specifically provided by the Articles of 


Incorporation, these Bylaws, or applicable law.  Attendance shall be either in person or by 


telephonic, radio, or similar communication whereby the distant committee member(s) 


and those committee members present in person all hear and may speak to and be heard 


on the matters raised therein. 


 


Section 6.7.  VOTING.  Each committee member who is present at any committee 


meeting, whether in person or by telephonic, radio, or similar communication, shall be 


entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the committee members. 


 


Section 6.8.  PROXIES PROHIBITED.  A committee member may not vote by proxy. 
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Section 6.9.  ACTION OF COMMITTEES.  Any action required or which may be taken 


by a committee pursuant hereto shall be taken and considered the act of the committee 


only if one of the following applies: 


 


6.9-1.  Formal Action.  The action is taken at a meeting of the committee at which a 


quorum is present, whether in person, by telephonic, radio, or similar communication, 


and is taken pursuant to a vote of a majority of the committee members present, unless 


the act of a greater number is required by the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, or 


applicable law; or           


 


6.9-2.  Informal Action.  The action is taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, 


setting forth the action so to be taken, shall be signed by all of the committee members.  


Such consent shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote. 


 


Section 6.10.  PROCEDURE.  The committees may adopt their own rules of procedure 


which shall not be inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or 


applicable law. 


 


ARTICLE VII 


 


OFFICERS 


 


Section 7.1  OFFICERS.  The Officers of the Corporation shall be a Chair, Vice Chair, 


Treasurer and a Secretary.  The duties of certain offices are set forth herein.  When the 


incumbent of an office is unable to perform the duties thereof or when there is not 


incumbent of an office (both such situations referred to thereafter as the “absence” of the 


Officer), the duties of the office shall, unless otherwise provided by the Board of these 


Bylaws, be performed by the next Officer set forth in the following sequence:  Chair, 


Vice Chair, Treasurer and Secretary. 


 


Section 7.2.  APPOINTMENT AND TENURE.  All officers shall be elected each year by 


the Board at its annual meeting for terms of one year, or until their successors have been 


duly elected and qualified, or until their resignation or removal.  Officers may be re-


elected for one additional term. 


 


Section 7.3.  RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL.  Any officer may resign at any time by 


giving written notice to the Chair, Executive Director or to the Secretary, and unless 


otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to 


make it effective.  Any Officer may be removed by two-thirds vote of the board whenever 


in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby. 


 


Section 7.4.  VACANCIES.  A vacancy in any office may be filled by the Board for the 


unexpired portion of the term. 
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Section 7.5.  DUTIES OF OFFICERS. 


 


7.5-1. CHAIR. 


The Chair of the Board of Directors shall be the principal Executive Officer of the 


Corporation and subject to the Consent of the Board of Directors, the Chair shall in 


general supervise the Executive Director and all the business and affairs of the 


Corporation. The Chair will preside at all meetings of the Directors.  The Chair shall 


perform all duties incident to the Office and such other duties as may be prescribed by the 


Directors  from time to time.  The Chair may in his/her discretion delegate such functions 


and duties to the Executive Director. 


 


7.5-2. VICE-CHAIR. 


In the absence of the Chair, or in the event of his/her refusal or inability to act, the Vice-


Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair and when so acting, shall have all the powers 


and be subject to all restrictions upon the Chair.   


 


7.5-3.  TREASURER. 


The Treasurer shall in general supervise the financial obligations of the Corporation and 


serve as chair for the Finance Committee.  The Treasurer may perform such other duties 


as may from time to time be assigned to him/her by the Executive Committee or  


Directors. 


 


The Treasurer may delegate such functions and duties to the Executive Director who shall 


have the authority to and shall co-sign drafts, checks and obligations of the Corporation. 


 


7.5-4.  SECRETARY. 


The Secretary shall be responsible for minutes of meetings of the Directors in a book 


provided for that purpose; see that notices are duly given in accordance with these 


Bylaws; be custodian of fund records and the Seal of the Corporation, and see that the 


Seal of the Corporation is properly affixed to all documents, the execution of which on 


behalf of the Corporation is duly authorized; keep a register of names and addresses of all 


members; and in general perform all duties incident to the Office of Secretary, and such 


other duties as may from time to time be assigned by the or by the Directors.  


 


The Secretary may delegate such functions and duties to the Executive Director and staff. 


   


Section 7.6.  BONDS OF OFFICERS.  The Board may secure the fidelity of any or all of 


such Officers by bond or otherwise, in such terms and with such surety or sureties, 


conditions, penalties or securities as shall be required by the Board.  The premium or 


premiums for such bond or bonds shall be paid out of the corporate funds of the 


Corporation. 


 


Section 7.7.   DELEGATION.  The Board may delegate temporarily the powers and 


duties of any Officer, in case of such Officer’s absence or for any other reason, to any 


other Officer, and may authorize the delegation by any Officer of any of such Officer’s 
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powers and duties to any agent or employee subject to the general supervision of such 


Officer. 


 


ARTICLE VIII 


 


MISCELLANEOUS 


 


Section 8.1.  CONTRACTS.  The Board may authorize any Officer or agent of the 


Corporation, in addition to the Officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to enter into any 


contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and 


such authority may be general or confined to specific instances and recorded in the 


minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors. 


 


Section 8.2.  CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.  All checks, drafts, or other orders for the 


payment of money, and all notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of 


the Corporation shall be signed by such Officer or Officers, agent or agents of the 


Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of 


the Board.  In the absence of such determination by the Board, such instruments shall be 


signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the Chair or Executive Director.  All checks 


will require two signatures as outlined in the agency Financial Policies. 


 


Section 8.3.  DEPOSITS.  All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to 


time to the credit of the Corporation in one or more such banks, trust companies, 


securities firms, or other depositories as the Board may from time to time designate, upon 


such terms and conditions as shall be fixed by the Board.  The Board may from time to 


time authorize the opening and keeping, with any such depository as it may designate, of 


general and special bank accounts or other forms of account and may make such special 


rules and regulations with respect thereto, not inconsistent with the provisions of these 


Bylaws, as it may deem necessary. 


 


Section 8.4.  GIFTS.  The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any 


contributions, gifts, bequests, or devises for and consistent with the general purposes, or 


for and consistent with any specific purposes, of the Corporation. 


           


Section 8.5.  BOOKS AND RECORDS.  The Corporation shall keep correct and 


complete books and records of account and shall also keep records of the actions of the 


Corporation, which records shall be open to inspection by members of the Board at any 


reasonable time. 


 


Section 8.6.  ANNUAL REPORT.  The Chair shall cause an Annual Report to be 


submitted to the Board no later than 120 days after the close of each fiscal year of the 


Corporation. 
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Section 8.7.  FISCAL YEAR; ACCOUNTING ELECTION.  The fiscal year of the 


Corporation shall end on June 30, and methods of accounting for the Corporation shall be 


as the Board shall determine from time to time by resolution of the Board. 


 


Section 8.8.  SEAL.  The corporate seal of the Corporation shall be circular in form with 


the word “FLORIDA KEYS AREA HEALTH EDUCATION CENTER, INC., a Florida 


corporation not for profit”, in the outer edge thereof. 


 


Section 8.9.  NOTICE. 


8.9-1.  Effective Date.  Unless otherwise specified herein, any notice required or 


permitted to be given pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, these 


Bylaws, or applicable law, shall be in writing, shall be sufficient and effective as of the 


date personally delivered or, if sent by mail, on the date deposited with the United States 


Postal Service, prepaid and addressed to the intended receiver at such receiver’s last 


known address as shown in the records of the Corporation. 


 


8.9-2.  Waiver of Notice.  Whenever any notice is required to be given under the 


provisions of the Florida General Corporation Act or Florida Not For Profit Corporation 


Act or under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or applicable 


law, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the persons entitled to such notice, whether 


before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such 


notice.  The attendance of a Director or member of a committee at any meeting shall 


constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director or member of a 


committee attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any 


business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. 


 


Section 8.10.  LOANS TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND OFFICERS 


PROHIBITED.  No loans shall be made by the Corporation to members of the Board of 


Officers.  The members of the Board who vote for or assent to the making of a loan to a 


member of the Board or Officer, and any member of the Board of Officer participating in 


the making of such loan, shall be jointly and severally liable to the Corporation for the 


amount of such a loan until the repayment thereof. 


 


 


           


Section 8.11.  INDEMNIFICATION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD, OFFICERS, 


AND OTHERS.         


(A)  The Corporation shall indemnify against liability to the fullest extent authorized or 


permitted by the provisions at 607.014 Florida Statute (other than 607.014(7)), and 


617.028 Florida Statute, as amended (or any amendment or successor provision thereof or 


any other statutory provision authorizing or permitting such indemnification which is 


adopted after the date this Section 8.11 is adopted) any person, and his/her heirs, 


executors, administrators and legal representatives, who is or was a party to any 


proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or 


agent of the corporation or is or was serving as a director, officer, employee, or agent of 
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another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise at the request of 


the corporation.  Officers and directors who are so entitled to be indemnified shall be paid 


their expenses in advance of a final disposition of the proceeding to the maximum extent 


authorized or permitted by the provisions of 607.014(6) Florida Statute or any amended 


or successor section. 


 


(B)  Article VIII, Section 8.11 of these Bylaws shall not be construed to mean that 


indemnification by the corporation pursuant to 607.014(7) Florida Statute is not 


permitted.  The corporation may indemnify any person pursuant to Section 607.014(7) 


F.S., or any amended or successor section, to the extent and in the manner desired by the 


Corporation and permitted by law. 


 


(C) Terms used in this Section 8.11 shall have the meanings ascribed to them in 


607.014(11) F.S. or any amended or successor section. 


 


Section 8.12.  DIRECTOR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.   


(A)  No contract or other transaction between a corporation and one or more of its 


Directors or any other corporation, firm, association, or entity in which one or more of its 


directors are Directors or officers or are financially interested shall be either void or 


voidable because of such relationship or interest, because such Director or Directors are 


present at the meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof which Authorizes, 


approves or ratifies such contract or transaction, or because his/her of their votes are 


counted for such purpose, if: 


1. The fact of such relationship or interest is disclosed or known to the Board of 


Directors or committee which authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or 


transaction by vote or consent sufficient or the purpose without counting the votes 


or consents of such interested Directors; or 


2. The fact of such relationship or interest is disclosed or known to the members 


entitled to vote on such contract or transaction, if any, and they authorize, 


approve, or ratify it by vote or written consent; or 


3. The contract or transaction is fair and reasonable as to the corporation at the time 


it is authorized by the Board, a committee, or the members. 


(B) Common or interested Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a 


quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof which authorizes, 


approves, or ratifies such contract or transaction.   


 


 


Section 8.13.  REVOCABILITY OF AUTHORIZATIONS.  No authorization, 


assignment, referral, or delegation or authority by the Board to any committee, Officer, 


agent, or other official of the Corporation, or any other organization which is associated 


or affiliated with, or conducted under the auspices of the Corporation shall preclude the 


Board from exercising the authority required to meet its responsibilities.  The Board shall 


retain the right to rescind any such authorization, assignment, referral, or delegation in its 


sole discretion. 
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Section 8.14.  EMPLOYEES OF THE CORPORATION.  The Board of Directors may 


employ such personnel as it deems necessary or desirable for the efficient operation of the 


Corporation. 


 


 


Section 8.15.  RULES.  The Board may adopt, amend, or repeal rules, (not inconsistent 


with these Bylaws) for the management of the internal affairs of the Corporation and the 


governance of its officers, agents, Board Committees, and employees. 


           


Section 8.16.  VOTE BY PRESIDING OFFICER.  The Person acting as presiding officer 


at any meeting held pursuant to these Bylaws shall, if a voting member thereof, be 


entitled to vote on the same basis as if not acting as presiding officer. Should there be 


reason for a tiebreaker the presiding officers vote will not be counted. 


 


Section 8.17.  GENDER AND NUMBER.  Whenever the context requires, the gender of 


all words used herein shall include the masculine, feminine and neuter, and the number of 


all words shall include the singular and plural thereof. 


 


Section 8.18.  ARTICLES AND OTHER HEADINGS.  The Article and other headings 


contained in these Bylaws are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the 


meaning or interpretation of these Bylaws. 


 


 


 


ARTICLE IX 


 


BY-LAWS 


 


Section 9.1.  AMENDMENT TO BY-LAWS.  Bylaws may be altered, amended or 


repealed with a two-third (2/3) vote of a properly noticed meeting. 


 


Section 9.2.  The Power to make, alter, or repeal the By-Laws shall be vested solely in the 


Directors of the Corporation; provided, however, that the text of any proposal to alter, 


amend, or repeal the By-Laws must be given to all Directors with the notice of the 


meeting at which the proposal is to be considered 


 


Adopted:  ____________________________, Date_____________ 


   Board Chair 


 


Reviewed:   ____________________________, Date_____________ 


   By-Law Committee Chair 
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SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 


 


THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing By-Laws of Florida Keys Area Health 


Education Center, Inc. have been duly adopted by the Board of Directors by written 


consent dated _______________________, Year, to become effective 


___________________, Year 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, duly elected and acting Secretary of the 


Corporation, has signed this Certificate and affixed the seal of the Corporation hereon this 


__________________ day of ___________________, Year 


 


 


 


 


 


 


________________________________ 


Secretary 
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Mission:
-


Ron DeSantis


To protect, promote & improve the health - (,) Governor


of all people in Florida through integrated
state, county & community efforts. OTI a


HEALTH
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion


March 7, 2019


Mr. Michael Cunningham, CEO


Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.


5800 Overseas Highway, Suite #38


Marathon, Fl. 33050


Re: Administrative and Programmatic Monitoring Report: COHQ5-AP-02


Contract(s): COHQ5


Dear Mr. Cunningham:


Our review of the documentation provided onsite and what was submitted to the Department indicated


there were no issues noted which would indicate the Provider is not in compliance with the administrative


and programmatic terms and conditions of its contract with the Department or applicable laws, rules, and


regulations.


Thank you for your cooperation with the review process. If you have any questions regarding this letter


or any other aspect of the review, please contact Ernest J. Bruton at Ernest. BrutonfIhealth.gov or at


(850) 558-9566.


Sincerely


Amgen,ontract Manager Supervisor


Cc: Amy Riggen, Director of School Health Services Program
Jamie Forrest, Acting Bureau Chief of Chronic Disease Prevention


Margaret Felton, Contract Monitoring Unit Supervisor
Ernest J. Bruton, Contract Manager


Florida Department of Health
I ______Office of Contracts


I4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 8-08 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1703
i jLJj Accredited Health DepartmentPHONE: 850/245-4122 • FAX: 850/413-8743


I
: Public Health Accreditation Board


FloridaHealth.gov







Mission: I
To proteta, promote & improve the health


.


Ron DeSantis


Governor


of all people in Flonda through integrated I ridà Istate, county & community efforts.


I HEALTH I
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation


March 7, 2019


ADMINISTRATIVE AND PROGRAMMATIC MONITORING REPORT


Provider:


Contract:


Review Period:


Date of Review:


Provider Representative:


Department Representative:


Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.


COHQ5


07/01/18 - 12/31/18


February 2019


Michael Cunningham, CEO


Ernest J. Bruton, BS, FCCM, Contract Manager


I. Authority.


Pursuant to Section 1.0. of the standard contract between the Department and the Provider, the


Department is authorized to monitor the activities of the Provider to ensure satisfactory performance
of the terms and conditions of its contract(s) with the Provider and to ensure compliance with


applicable laws, rules and regulations. Monitoring activities which are relevant to the Department's
contract(s) with the Provider include, but are not limited to: 1) inspection of records, papers,


documents, facilities, goods and services of the Provider; and 2) interviews of Provider employees.
This monitoring is not intended to be a substitute for a comprehensive financial audit.


II. Scope and Objectives of the Review.


The Provider received funding from the State of Florida Department of Health (the "Department")
during the review period as follows:


COHQ5 Renewal #1 - A fixed-price contract whose term was October 1, 2017 through June


30, 2019, which contained $500,000 in State financial assistance under CSFA No. 64.132.


The overarching goal of the program is to provide comprehensive integrated direct primary
care medical services for school aged children and siblings in the school sethng. Providing
school based health services in an easily accessible location and manner creates new access


points for children and their families so that they can avoid emergency room visits or other


costly alternatives.


In February 2019, Ernest J. Bruton conducted a review of the administrative and programmatic
activities of the Provider. The objectives of the review were to:


• Determine whether the administrative and programmatic activities, policies, and procedures
of the Provider were adequate to properly manage and administer Department funds


pertaining to the contract(s) under review;
• Determine compliance with applicable State and Federal laws, rules and regulations;
• Determine compliance with contractual terms set forth in the aforementioned contract.


Report # COHQ5-AP-02







Provider's Name: Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.


Administrative and Programmatic Monitoring Report


Ill. Administrative Findings.


No administrative compliance issues were found.


IV. Programmatic Findings.


No programmatic compliance issues were found.


V. Required Actions.


A written response, on the enclosed Corrective Action Plan template, to each issue identified in our report
must be submitted within 40 calendar days of receipt.


VI. SUMMARY. Our review of the documentation provided onsite and what was submitted to the


Department did not indicate the Provider is non-compliant with the terms and conditions of its


contract with the Department or applicable laws, rules, and regulations.


We would like to convey our thanks and appreciation to the Provider's staff for their courteous and


prompt assistance in providing information relative to our monitoring review.


',24Z j477
Ernest J. Br,it'on, Contract Manager


y Rigg ,Contract Manager Supervisor


Cc. Amy Riggen, Director of School Health Services Program
Jamie Forrest, Acting Bureau Chief of Chronic Disease Prevention


Margaret Felton, Contract Monitoring Unit Supervisor
Keondra Lester, Contract Liaison


Report # COHQ5-AP-02
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Provider's Name: Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.


Administrative and Programmatic Monitoring Report


Ill. Administrative Findings


A. Department of State - Division of Corporations - Section l.M.1., of the standard


contract(s) with the Department, requires the Provider entering into a contract in the State


of Florida be construed, performed and enforced in all respects in accordance with the


laws, rules, and regulations with the State of Florida.


The Provider complied with the requirements.


B. Public Access to Records - Section l.C.8., of the standard contract(s) with the


Department, requires the Provider to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters,
or other materials subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, F.S. made or received by the


Provider in conjunction with the Department's contract(s).


The Provider complied with the requirements.


C. Equal Employment Opportunity - Section l.B.2.g., of the standard contract(s) with the


Department, requires the Provider to comply with President's Executive Order 11246,


Equal Employment Opportunity.


The Provider complied with the requirements.


0. Pro-Child Act of 1994 (Indoor Smoking Restrictions) - Section l.B.2.h., of the


standard contract(s) with the Department, requires that smoking not be permitted in any


portion of any indoor facility used for the provision of any federally funded services


including health, day care, early childhood development, education or library services on


a routine or regular basis, to children up to age 18.


The Provider complied with the requirements.


E. Record Retention - Section l.C.2., of the standard contract(s) with the Department,
requires the Provider to retain all records and documents pertinent to their contract(s) for


a period of six (6) years after termination of the contract(s), or if an audit has been initiated


and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of six years, the records must be


retained until resolution of all audit findings or any litigation which may be based on the


terms of the contract(s).


The Provider complied with the requirements.


F. Insurance - Section l.F., of the standard contract(s) with the Department, requires the


Provider to provide adequate liability insurance coverage on a comprehensive basis and


to hold such liability insurance at all times during the existence of this contract(s) and any


renewal(s) and extension(s) of it.


The Provider complied with the requirements.


G. Purchasing -Section l.K., of the standard contract(s) with the Department, requires the


Provider to purchase any articles which are the subject of, or are required to carry out this


contract(s) from Prison Rehabilitative Industries and Diversified Enterprises, Inc.


(PRIDE).


Report # COHQ5-AP-02
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Provider's Name: Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.


Administrative and Programmatic Monitoring Report


The Provider complied with the requirement.


H. Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act (HIPAA) - Section I.B.2.i., of the


standard contract(s) with the Department, requires the Provider to comply with the Health


Insurance Portability Accountability Act as well as all regulations promulgated.


The Provider completed the attestation.


Independent Capacity of the Contractor - Section l.M.1, of the standard contract(s)
with the Department, requires the Provider to be an independent contractor for the


performance of all tasks contemplated by this contract(s), which are not the exclusive


responsibility of the Department.


The Provider completed the attestation.


End of Report


Report # COHQ5-AP-02
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Administrative Contract Monitoring Tool


Provider Name: Florida Keys AHEC EvàIutörJSName: ErncstJ. Brutófl


Contract #: COHQ5 Typ&OrFuding:' State


FEIN: E65-0183810 Site ViSitDat: February12, 2019


Review Period: 7/112018 12131/2018 Exit CoñfereflceDate:' FébrUary12,.2019
Provider


Representative
&, ,.


ames1.
_____________


Michael Cunningham


____________________________


Repoit Date:. March 1, 2019;


Standard Contract
Version:


11/16


_______________________


Compliance Evidence Source Comment Suggested Documents


to Request


= Interview


Provider Administrative Contract Yes No 0 = Observation Explanation of Documents,


Requirements D = Documents "NO" Response Policies,


(Name, Date, Title) Procedures
______________________________


1. Department of State - Division of


____ _____ __________________


Go to the Florida


Corporations: LI Documentation from the Department of State


Is the Provider legally authorized to Division of Corporations Division of Corporations
conduct business in the State of Florida? (Detail by entity name) website:


http://www.sunbiz.org to


determine:


1. That the Provider is


registered to conduct


business in the State


of Florida


2. They are in Active


status
__________________________________________


2. Public Access to Records:


______ ______
________________________ _________________________


a. Provider Policies and


Does the Provider allow the public LI Document (Employee Procedures or


access to all documents, papers, letters, Handbook) b. Employee Handbook


or other materials subject to the or


provisions of Chapter 119, F.S.? c. Interview with


appropriate Provider


staff to gain an


understanding of how


requests for public
_______________________________________ _____ _____ ______________________ _______________________


records are handled
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Administrative Contract Monitoring Tool


3. Equal Employment Opportunity: Document (Employee a. Employment
Did the Provider comply with the Handbook) Application! Employee
President's Executive Order 11246, Handbook or


Equal Employment Opportunity? b. Policies/Procedures or


c. Posters Advising EEO


Rights posted in


_____________________________________


common areas


4. Pro-Child Act of 1994 - Indoor


_____ _____
_____________________


N/A


______________________


This requirement is not a. Policies/Procedures or


Smoking Restrictions: LI LI applicable. There are no b. Employee Handbook


Does evidence or documentation exist to Federal Funds associated or


validate the Provider has complied with with this contractual c. Posted signs in


the prohibition of indoor smoking? services agreement. common areas


(Federal_Funding_Only)
5. Record Retention:


_____ _____ ______________________ _______________________


The contract hasn't


_______________________


a. Policies/Procedures or


Does evidence or documentation exist to LI Document (Employee ended but a policy is in b. A Retention Schedule


validate the Provider has complied with Handbook) place that has a seven which includes types
the minimum record retention of six years year requirement on of documents, date


after termination of the contract? (If an records retention. placed into storage,
audit has been initiated and audit findings date of scheduled


have not been resolved at the end of six destruction


years, the records were retained until the


audit was_resolved.)
6. Insurance:


_____ _____ _____________________


Document (Certificate of


______________________ ______________________


a. Request the most


Did the Provider have adequate liability Insurance) recent Certificate of


insurance coverage and hold such Liability Insurance


coverage at all times during the term of from the Provider


DOH's contract and any extension(s) or


renewal(s)?
7. Purchasing:


______ ______
_______________________


Interview with Michael


________________________ ________________________


Interview Provider's


Does evidence or documentation exist to LI Cunningham, Chief purchasing staff to


validate the Provider has complied with Executive Officer. determine if:


the requirement to purchase from Prison 1. They are aware of the


Rehabilitative Industries and Diversified Document (Employee requirements to utilize


Enterprises, Inc. (PRIDE)? If not, was Handbook) Rehabilitative


justification provided? Industries and


Diversified


Enterprises, Inc.


website: www. pride-


enterprises.orq
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Administrative Contract Monitoring Tool


8. Health Insurance Portability Document (Signed Have the Provider sign
Accountability Act (HIPAA): E HIPAA Attestation Form - the HIPAA Attestation


Did the Provider Attest to adherence of 01) Form 01


the_HIPAA_requirements?
9. Independent Capacity of the


_____ _____ _______________________


Document (Signed
______________________ _______________________


Have the Provider sign
Contractor: J Attestation of the Attestation of


Did the Provider Attest to Independence Form - Independence
Independence?


_____ _____


02).
-


Form 02


Title: Contract Manager Date:
____________________


Printed Name: Ernei'Bruton
(Person performing the Monitoring)


Signature: Title: Executive Community Health Nursing Director Date:
__________________


Printed Name: Amy Riggen


(Person conducting the Supervisory Review)
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Proarammatic Contract Monitorina Tool


Provider Name: Ernest J. Bruton SeMceDescription: Primary Care Services


Contraót #: COHQ5 COHQ5 Typof:Funding:. State
FEIN:. F65-0183810 Slie.VisitDate: Fèbrtiary12-13, 2019


Review Period 07/0112018 - i2I31I2018 Report Date 03101/2019


Provider


Representative
Name(s):


Michael Cunningham, CEO.


__________________________


EvalUator'S Name:


_______________________


Ernest J. Bruton


________________________


Rating


Ratings Based Upon: Notes


__________________________________________ _____________


Explain


______ _______


T = Testing


c
I = Interview (Explain Ratings 2 or


Provider Contract Requirements
.


CO


-


0 = Observation


D = Documentation


Less: Attach Supportive


Documentation)
-


. (List Who and What)


Ug
0


1 2 3 4 N/A
_______________________________________


Programmatic Requirements


____________________________ _____________________


A.3. Clients to be Served Documentation and interview with


a. Services are provided to eligible clients as U U UI CEO


per_the_contract.
b. Provider complied with eligibility


_______ _______ _______ _______ ________ ____________________________________


Document - parent packet


___________________________


criteria.
__


c. Provider complied with established client Invoice back-up
units. documentation/observation


B.1. Service Tasks


a. Service tasks are delivered on time and as


defined in the contract task list and


limits. (List and rate each service task


from Attachment I, Paragraph B. l.a.)


I. Provided comprehensive direct UI U U U Quarterly invoice back-up
primary care medical services in the documentation


specified service areas


2. Maintain a minimum staffing level Documentation (resumes, etc.)
Interview with CEO
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Proarammatic Contract Monitorinci Tool


Rating


Ratings Based Upon: Notes


__________________________________________ _____________


Explain


______ _______


T Testing


U) . I = Interview (Explain Ratings 2 or


Provider Contract Requirements
.


CU


-


(1) U) 0= Observation


D = Documentation


Less: Attach Supportive


Documentation)


-5 cI . . (List Who and What)


0
u_s- I- ,-


1 2 3 4 N/A
_____________________


_______________________________________


3. Provide written information during L] [1 [1 [1
____________________________


Interview with CEO


the year about school health services Documentation (Parent packet)
offered


4. Provide comprehensive direct E D Quarterly invoice back-up


primary care medical services to documentation


eligible students


5. Participate in the Youth Risk Participation in this survey is upon


Behavior Survey request and none have been made


6. Maintain treatment related E E E fl Uses Health Office Anywhere,
documentation Care Tracker and FOCUS


7. Prepare quarterly reports E E E E Documentation


8. Prepare an Annual Report E The Annual Report for the period
reviewed isn't due yet


B.4. Staffing Requirements Documentation


a. Provider staffing levels are maintained as Interview with CEO


per_contract.
b. Provider maintains qualified


______ ______ ______


ri


______ _______ ________________________________


Quarterly expenditure review


________________________


professionals as per contract, documentation


Interview with CEO
_________________________________


c. Provider handles staffing changes as per


_____ _____ _____


ri


____ _____


Quarterly invoice documentation


__________________


contract. Interview with CEO


B.3. Service Location and Equipment


_____ _____ _____ _____ ______


Observation


_____________________


a. Services are provided at the locations Quarterly invoice documentation


specified and facility requirements have E E
been_met.


b. Service times meet contract requirements.


______ ______ ______ _____ ______ _____________________________


Observation


______________________


Interviews with CEO and Nurse


_______________________________________________ _______ _______ _______ ______ ________


Practitioners placed in the schools
_________________________
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Proqrammatic Contract Monitorinq Tool


Rating


Ratings Based Upon: Notes


________________________________________ ____________


Explain


______ ______


I = Testing
I = Interview (Explain Ratings 2 or


Provider Contract Requirements
.


CO


.


CI) U) w 0 = Observation


D = Documentation


Less: Attach Supportive


Documentation)
-


. (List Who and What)


g LL-
WD


0


1 2 3 4 N/A
______________________________________________________________


c. Changes in location are appropriately


_____________________________


There were no changes in location


handled as per contract. E] E E fl during the period reviewed


d. Provider equipment is available, safe, in No equipment is purchased with


______________________


good working order, and meets contract funds under this contract


requirements (including procurement, if fl E E E
applicable).


B.1 .b. Deliverables


______ ______ _______ _______ ________ __________________________________


Quarterly invoice back-up


_________________________


a. Service units are provided as defined by E U documentation


the_contract.
b. Required reports are accurate, complete


______ ______ _______ _______ ________ __________________________________


Documentation


_________________________


and submitted on time as defined by the U U U
contract.


c. Provider records and documentation are


______ ______ ______ ______ _______ ________________________________


Quarterly invoice back-up


________________________


available, accurate and complete as documentation


defined by the contract. Quarterly expenditure report
review


B.1.c. Performance Specifications
a. Provider is meeting (or has met) the


performance standards as defined by the


contract (list and rate each


outcome/output from Attachment I,


paragraph B.5.a.


a) Services at Key West High School must LI U U U Onsite observation/invoice back-up
be provided as specified.


b) Minimum staffmust be maintained as U U U U Quarterly expenditures review


specified.
c) Parents and guardians must be provided U U U U Interview with CEO/Parent packets


written information as specified.
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Proarammatic Contract Monitorinci Tool


Rating


Ratings Based Upon: Notes


__________________________________________ _____________


Explain


______ _______


T = Testing


V
I = Interview (Explain Ratings 2 or


Provider Contract Requirements
.


° 0 = Observation


D = Documentation


Less: Attach Supportive


Documentation)
. 2 (List Who and What)


°


0


1 2 3 4 N/A
______________________


________________________________________


d) Signed consent forms must be obtained LI LI [1 [1
_____________________________


Interview with CEO and


from parents and guardians and observation in CareTracker


maintained as specified.
e) The minimum number of comprehensive LI LI El LI Quarterly invoice back-up


direct primary care medical services documentation


must be provided as specified.
1) The Youth Risk Behavior Survey must LI LI LI LI No request for participation


be participated in as specified.
g) Treatment related documentation must LI LI LI LI Maintained in CareTracker


be maintained as specified.


h) Quarterly Reports must be provided as LI LI LI LI Documentation


specified.
i) An annual Report must be provided as LI LI LI LI Not due for the review period


specified.


B.1. Provider Responsibilities Observations


a. Provider is performing provider unique Interview with CEO


activities as defmed by the contract.


b. Provider coordinates services integration


______ ______ ______ ______ _______ ________________________________


Interview with CEO


________________________


both internally and externally with other Interviews/observations with the


entities as defined by the contract. Nurse Practitioners placed in the


schools
_____________________________________________


c. Payments made by the provider to the


______ ______ ______ ______ _______


Quarterly expenditure report


________________________


subcontractor must be within seven


working days according to section


287.0585,_F.S.
C. Method of Payment


______ ______ ______ ______ _______ ________________________________


Observation


________________________


a. Invoices are accurate, complete and Documentation


submitted on time as defined by the


contract.


b. Service delivery supporting


______ ______ ______ ______ ________ ________________________________


Quarterly invoice back-up


________________________


documentation has been maintained
LI LI LI LI


documentation
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Programmatic Contract Monitoring Tool


Rating


Ratings Based Upon: Notes


___________________________________________ _____________


Explain


______ _______


T = Testing
.


V
- I = Interview (Explain Ratings 2 or


Provider Contract Requirements
CU


.


-


(1) (1) 0 = Observation


D = Documentation


Less: Attach Supportive


Documentation)
. (List Who and What)


°'


0


1 2 3 4 N/A
_________________________________________


and/or submitted as defined by the


_____________________________ ______________________


contract.


D. Special Provisions Documentation (approved contract


a. Provider has complied with special renewal)


provisions as defined by the contract (list
and rate each special provision where


requirements_were_not_fully_met) ___________________________


E. Non-Expendable Property


_______ _______ _______ _______ ________ ____________________________________


a. Does the provider maintain and properly


_____


LI
_____


LI
_____


LI
_____


LI
______ ____________________________


Interview with CEO


_____________________


document purchased equipment into an


inventory log?
_______________________


b. Does the inventory log contain the


______


LI
______


LI
______


LI
______


LI
_______ ______________________________


Interview with CEO


required elements (Make, model, serial


number, date of purchase, unit cost,


etc.)?
c. Was the purchase properly routed,


_______


LI
_______


LI
_______


LI
_______


LI
________ ____________________________________


Interview with CEO


___________________________


approved and documented through the


Information Technology division, if


applicable?
d. Conduct a physical verification of the


_______


LI
_______


LI
_______


LI
_______


LI
________ __________________________________


Interview with CEO


_________________________


existence, use and location ofthe


equipment,_if applicable
Future Contract Actions


______ ______ ______ ______ _______ ________________________________


The Provider indicated that steps


________________________


(Lessons Learned) are being taken to secure funding


through the Legislature to continue


_______________________________________ _________________________________


the program.
_____________________


___%4'/2!1Z3 Title: Contract Manager Date:
_____________________


Printed Name: Ernest . ruton


(Person performing the Monitoring)
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Signature:


Programmatic Contract Monitoring Tool


_____________________________


Title: _Executive Community Health Nursing Director Date:


Printed Name: Amy Riggen


(Person conducting the Supervisory Review)
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Florida Dept of Health-Master Report


Q3 Summer June May Apr


Medical Services
Service 


Code


Total # 


Services
FTTY


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Family Planning Primary/Assessment/Counseling 50xx 8 16 0 0 0 0


HTN screening 0505 1,671 4,933 0 0 0 0


Vision screening 0510 377 1,671 0 0 0 0


Height / Weight screening 0520 1,319 4,056 0 0 0 0


Normal Weight 0521 1,116 3,228 0 0 0 0


Underweight 0522 21 91 0 0 0 0


Overweight 0523 197 592 0 0 0 0


Obese 0524 272 789 0 0 0 0


Dental screening-In Clinic 0540 1,106 3,439 0 0 0 0


Scoliosis screening 0561 392 1,719 0 0 0 0


Pediculosis / Scabies screening 0571 1,219 3,684 0 0 0 0


HCG urine pregnancy test 0590 10 21 0 0 0 0


Record Review 0598 2,055 6,264 0 0 0 0
Physical Activity Assesment / Counseling 4700 221 1,005 0 0 0 0


Medication Activities 5030 481 1,167 0 0 0 0


First Aid Administration 5031 56 161 0 0 0 0


Complex Medical Procedure 5032 354 640 0 0 0 0


Immunization Follow-up 5033 247 1,387 0 0 0 0
School Health Consultation (parent contact) 5051 2,198 6,530 0 0 0 0


Obesity Intervention 5054 98 505 0 0 0 0


Physical Exam 5500 422 2,589 0 0 0 0


Medical professional Encounter 6500 1,625 5,022 0 0 0 0


Preventative Dental Services-Sealant Program 6610 6 1,488 0 0 0 0


Check Insurance 7110 1,059 2,032 0 0 0 0


Mental Health Counseling 8002 9 1,056 0 0 0 0


Health Education Class-**** 8020 2,310 0 0 0 0


Smoking cessation counseling 8027 12 28 0 0 0 0


Overall Total - Per Service Codes 16,551 56,423 0 0 0 0


Keys AHEC Health Center School Health Program-  Monthly Services Report


Q4







Overall Total - Per Patient Sign-In Sheet (M only) 1,837 5,377 0 0 0 0


Total Patient Visits (M, O, MH) 7,323


****Total Patient Visits-W/Health Education 9,633


****Total Health Presentations/Classess 110 Mental Health Quarterly #'s


Quarterly Visits


M, O, MH = Medical, Oral Health and Mental Health Total Visits 1041


Unique Patients 188


Dental Program Fall


683 Dental Patients


1007 Sealants placed


251 Sealant Participants







Q3


Mar Feb Jan Dec Nov Oct Sept Aug


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


Total # 


Services


1 3 4 3 5 0 0 0


400 623 648 411 606 749 555 941


63 108 206 55 185 211 164 679


335 468 516 318 471 590 466 892


306 398 412 281 398 369 357 707


2 12 7 9 10 27 5 19


50 67 80 43 81 92 72 107


57 107 108 76 105 127 87 122


256 395 455 230 377 503 393 830


61 116 215 59 186 204 170 708


307 456 456 293 390 520 420 842


2 3 5 1 1 1 6 2


520 919 616 606 728 1,003 597 1,275


13 64 144 58 109 129 138 350


129 173 179 173 154 179 115 65


12 20 24 22 24 32 17 10


96 124 134 74 79 130 1 2


43 78 126 32 125 162 176 645


530 851 817 571 751 1,031 811 1,168


18 38 42 28 48 71 63 197


66 123 233 64 202 311 632 958


399 614 612 452 528 827 632 958


3 1 2 2 2 3 0 0


245 391 423 212 354 407 0 0


2 3 4 1 2 3 0 0


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


3 4 5 3 1 7 3 2


3,918 6,156 6,473 4,077 5,922 7,688 5,880 11,479


Q1Q2







447 684 706 479 644 844 632 941


765 276


info due 3/15


Dental Program Spring


222 Dental Patients


468 Sealants placed


130 Sealant Participants
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HEALTH --  GENERAL AND REHABILITATIVE


FLORIDA KEYS AREA 
HEALTH EDUCATION 
CENTER PROGRAM INC 


QUICK FACTS


place  MARATHON, FL 


Mission


TRAIN, RECRUIT, AND RETAIN MEDICAL STUDENTS AND  
PROFESSIONALS.


Ruling Year 


1990


Main Address


5800 OVERSEAS HWY STE 38 


MARATHON, FL 33050 


Show More Contacts 


EIN


65-0183810


 <https://bridge-registry.org/> 
Number


3723564613


Cause Area (NTEE Code) 


Public Health Program (E70)


IRS Filing Requirement


This organization is required to file an IRS Form 
990 or 990-EZ.


Candid at a Glance 







Download Tax Forms


Show Forms 990 


PROGRAMS + RESULTS
This nonprofit has not provided Programs + Results information.


FINANCIALS
Florida Keys Area Health Education Center Program Inc


This information is only available for subscribers and in Premium reports.


OPERATIONS
The people, governance practices, and partners that make the organization tick. 


Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees Highest Paid Employees Board of Directors


This information is only available for subscribers and in Premium reports.







Board Leadership Practices


GuideStar worked with BoardSource, the national leader in nonprofit board leadership and 
governance, to create this section, which enables organizations and donors to transparently share 
information about essential board leadership practices. 


SOURCE: Self-reported by organization


BOARD ORIENTATION & EDUCATION


Does the board conduct a formal orientation for new board members and require all board 
members to sign a written agreement regarding their roles, responsibilities, and expectations? 


Not Applicable 


CEO OVERSIGHT


Has the board conducted a formal, written assessment of the chief executive within the past year? 


Not Applicable 


ETHICS & TRANSPARENCY


Have the board and senior staff reviewed the conflict-of-interest policy and completed and signed 
disclosure statements in the past year? 


Not Applicable 


BOARD COMPOSITION


Does the board ensure an inclusive board member recruitment process that results in diversity of 
thought and leadership? 


Not Applicable 


BOARD PERFORMANCE


Has the board conducted a formal, written self-assessment of its performance within the past three 
years? 


Not Applicable 







.
<https://candid.org/> 
Candid gets you the information you need to do good. 


©2019 Candid. All rights reserved. Candid is a 501c3 nonprofit organization, EIN 13-1837418
<https://www.guidestar.org/profile/13-1837418> . Donations are tax-deductible.
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	Text7: Florida Keys Area Health Education Center, Inc.
	List others belowRow1: Electronic Health Record
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	Text41: April 2, 2019
 
Janet Gunderson
Sr. Administrator Grants and Finance Analyst
Monroe County BOCC
Office of Management and Budget
1100 Simonton St.
Key West, FL 33040
 
Dear Ms. Gunderson and HSAB Members:
 
Keys AHEC is pleased to submit this funding proposal for review by the Human Services Advisory Board.  We look forward to the continued partnership in addressing the primary and oral health care needs of our county's most medically vulnerable children.  
 
Since 2014 Keys AHEC has been a provider of primary care services to children of tax paying families of Monroe County through 8 clinical sites and 10 Oral Health assessment sites.  Volume increases during this time have required doubling provider staff and clinical sites as patient services have increased by over 92% and the number of unique patients by 87%.  59% of  the clinic's patients are uninsured or on Medicaid with no medical home.
 
In the process of building and expanding this unique no cost program where no other community agency provides such services, Keys AHEC continues to work with local partners to address patient needs beyond the primary care piece this program offers.  These partners, as outlined in the grant application, are then able to proceed with specialty, secondary and ancillary services such as sutures, x-ray, women's health exams, blood labs and other emergency services.
 
Keys AHEC additionally partners with multiple government agencies and private foundations to build a revenue base to support the ongoing expansion needs of the program.
 
Thank you for your interest in the Keys AHEC program and we envision a healthier community by increasing access to quality medical care,
 
Sincerely,
 
Michael Cunningham
 
	Text42:  The mission of Keys AHEC is to effectively provide direct medical services and deliver professional based health service programming resulting in a healthier, better educated community.  
	Text44: Keys AHEC will utilize HSAB funding to partially support the salaries of multiple ARNP’s for the School Health Centers and expansion programs.  Sites will offer access to no cost health care services for medically vulnerable children.

Medical Services Include: School Health Physicals, Sick & Well Child Visits, Chronic Disease Management (Asthma and Diabetes), Prescriptions, Treatment of Minor Injuries, Strep, Urine Dipstick & Glucose Testing, Vision/Hearing Tests, Pregnancy Testing, Referral for Full Labs, Specialty Services, Nutrition & Weight Management Counseling, Consultation & Collaboration with School Health & Psychology Services.

Outside of the Keys AHEC school based medical clinic there are no primary care programs in the schools for students or their siblings.  

Keys AHEC will provide dental sealants and oral health assessments for Second and Seventh graders countywide.  Students in need of oral health treatment will then be cased managed for needed follow up treatment.  The dental team offer on-site services at all public elementary and middle schools through this mobile program. Dental treatment services are currently being planned for FY 19/20.
	Physical Address: 5800 Overseas Hwy, #38
	Mailing Address: 
	City State Zip: Marathon, FL 33050
	Phone: 305 743 7111
	Fax: 305 743 7709
	Email: michael@keysahec.org
	Who should we contact with questions about this application: Michael Cunningham, CEO
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	Text3: 
	Text6: What changed?
	Text160: What changed?
	Text178: 
	Text214: Economic barriers have been experienced by our working poor families as they continue struggling to provide for their basic needs (affordable housing) and healthcare is one that is often sacrificed.
Many families of Monroe County simply do not have access to timely, quality and affordable health care.  This includes medical, oral health and mental health.  Monroe County maintains one of the highest rates of uninsured populations in the State. Often parents or single parent homes work multiple jobs, many of which do not offer health insurance. 
The Keys AHEC Health Centers provide no out of pocket expense primary medical care for these students and a no cost Dental Sealants program for Second and Seventh Graders.
The Keys AHEC program allows non-insured, Medicaid, and those considered medically vulnerable to have access to no cost health services that otherwise do not exist for students in Monroe County. With the high cost of ER, Urgent Care and private practice visits many patients go without health care until it becomes an emergency situation. Additionally many of our patients report not being able to get an appointments with a provider due to lack of insurance, money for upfront payments, providers not taking Medicaid or timely appointments not available when needed.  
	Text69: The target population of the program in its entirety is the current student population of 10 public schools and other private/charter schools.  The focus will be on the approximately 8,900 students.  This places a potential population to draw at around 9,400 potential patients with younger siblings.  The Clinic and its outreach programs anticipate having around 8,000 patient encounters/visits.  With continued support and additional clinical services to be offered we estimate this could increase to over 9,000 (oral and mental health)
Working Poor Families with children make up a large portion of those living below (11% under 100% of the FPL) or at (29% under 200% of the FPL) poverty levels. The School District reports 10% of their student population misses 21 or more days of school due to illness, 47% of all students are on the free/reduced price lunch program.

	Text68: School Health Nurses , School Staff,  Outside Social Service Providers, Local Medical Providers, through AHEC's School Based Outreach, Walk-ins and Appointments.
Keys AHEC  utilizes the MCSD Connect Ed system to reach out to parents multiple times per year as well through social media support and advertisements as required by the State and other funding sources.
	Text67: Keys AHEC has a pre-registration process where clinical registration and consent forms are provided to all students at the start of each school year.  The letter explains the program, how to access it and the services provided.  Priority is given to children based on the severity of need given the current medical problem as documented by the medical provider.  No child is refused service based on socio-economic status.
	Text65: Keys AHEC Main office is at 5800 Overseas Hwy, #38 Marathon and is open daily from 8-5.  It additionally has two tobacco sites-Northside Dr., Key West and High Point Rd, Tavernier.  HSAB funding will assist in the support of the Health Centers located at Schools in Key Largo, Coral Shores, Marathon MHS, Switlik, Sugarloaf, Gerald Adams, HOB and KWHS.   All School sites are open ½ hour before school to ½ hour after school on varying days. 
	19info: What financial challenges do you expect in the next two years, and how do you plan to respond to them?
	Text64: Keys AHEC receives a diversified funding allocation stream through different grants and contracts each year.  State Tobacco funds, State Legislative Allocations, federal grants, private grants, contract funds and earned insurance revenues now make up just about all of AHEC funds.  Programs are identified, developed and targeted based on health needs for at risk populations i.e. Primary Care, Oral Health, Mental Health, Breast Cancer, Tobacco Cessation, Professional Training and other programming.
Most funding streams over the past six years have been stable, but fluctuate year to year based on grant and contract periods and resources available.
The most significant change in our funding has been the addition of School Health Center Program. Keys AHEC works in Tallahassee to secure funding as well as grow financial partnerships with Private Foundations, Private Donors and Local entities.    The clinics in addition do receive some limited reimbursement from Medicaid and Health Insurance Carriers.

	Text234: Please see Attachment O for current statistical graphs and service logs giving support to services provided and patients seen during last fiscal year and year to date this year (August-March).  This information is also inclusive of mid-year reports for oral and mental health programming.

Additionally the Keys Community Health Assessment* and CHIP ** outline the need for Primary Care, Pediatricians, Medicaid Providers, Oral Health Services, Mental Health and access to affordable care for  populations with low and moderate incomes that cannot access health care services.

*http://monroe.floridahealth.gov/programs-and-services/community-health-planning-and-statistics/almanac/_documents/Monroe_CHA.pdf

**http://monroe.floridahealth.gov/programs-and-services/community-health-planning-and-statistics/chip/_documents/Monroe_CHIP.pdf
	Text441: There is the lack of access to quality medical care by our County’s most medical vulnerable children.  These include our uninsured, under insured, Medicaid populations and those with commercial insurance, but with high deductibles.  Over the past two years we have seen the situation has worsen where more barriers to accessing health care are present.  
There are only 4 full time pediatric practices in Monroe County, most with capped Medicaid enrollments.  Keys AHEC is now being assigned many new Medicaid patients that are not coming into the system as newborns.  Oral health and pediatric mental health access s even more of a concern with a lack of low income and Medicaid providers specializing in children's care.

These cumulative events create a significant barrier to accessing basic health care services in our community for low income families. Even with sliding fee scale, clinic cost remains a factor for these families not eligible for Medicaid. One FQHC reports they are not a free clinic and if a patient does not have the ability to pay, they are referred away and not seen.

	Text63: Keys AHEC had 3 main challenges:
Staff Turnover-Keys AHEC had to replace 3 staff members for the medical team with new professionals post Hurricane  Irma  This challenge was met successfully and timely.
Funding Shortfalls-Key AHEC has not had access to funding through certain municipalities due to recovery costs and FEMA non-reimbursement.  Keys AHEC has diversified funding to address this need.
Credentialing Process-The Baptist and KPHA process which is a phase 1 and phase 2 process for us has taken over 6 months due to changing policies, forms and staff turnover with Baptist and Lower Keys Medical Center.  The long process does not allow our staff to receive reimbursement for billing through insurances we contract through the agencies.  To address this Keys AHEC has maintained contact with credentialing staff to monitor applications and provide all necessary information in new application process.
No other noted challenges are expected except for addressing expansion programsand new needed finances.

	Text62:   The Keys AHEC Board consists of representatives and consumers of services that Keys AHEC provides.  All members of the Board come from the healthcare, social service, allied health professional, business community, university or governmental professions.   Any interested individual or agency may seek volunteer opportunities with the agency for program delivery or partnering for specific areas of mutual interest.  
	22info: Is your agency monitored by an outside entity? If so, by whom and how often?
	Text61: Yes. Keys AHEC receives an annual formal contract and financial evaluation and monitoring by the Florida Department of Health.  This report is attached to the Grant application for review.  There were no findings or deficiencies noted.
	hours of program service were contributed by: 632
	volunteers in the last year: 41
	Text60: No, all HSAB support will fund Keys AHEC programming for the delivery of medical and oral health services.
	Text59: 1. Maintain the 8 school-based clinics to increase access to primary care, dental and mental health services.
2. Maintain days of operation at the existing Countywide school-based clinic
3. Increase the number of primary care service encounters within the program
4. Increase the number of school-based programs/services operated by Florida Keys AHEC in Monroe County.
5. Maintain 5 FTE PA/ARNPs to serve the Monroe County school-based clinics.
6. Purchase supplies and equipment needed; adjust liability insurance requirements to include new sites and staff; maintain Medical Waste and CLIA permits for new school-based clinic.
7. Conduct outreach to families of students attending schools served by the school based primary care clinics to promote availability of services.
8. Secure General Consent for Clinical Treatment forms from parents of 100% of new students accessing the school based clinics.
 9. Maintain and Secure contracts with insurance providers to support billing and reimbursements for services. 

	26info: How will you measure these outcomes?
	Text58: Keys AHEC will utilize CareTracker EHR for all clinical services, patient visits and unique patient visit records.
Oral Health Assessment forms to track patient numbers, sealants provided, identified needed dental treatment and demographics.
Each data component is collected and analyzed through reporting requirement and systems that provide us our baseline information.  With documented results a formal report outlining our measurable goals will be produced both electronically and manually.   This relates directly to students in need of medical services, mental health services, chronic disease mgt programs along with resources to ensure the existence of programs/services long term. Use of the tools chosen is supported nationally as evidence based using best practices. 
Formal reporting is due to all funding partners and the State of Florida based on stated goals.
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	Text442: Keys AHEC has maintained its expanded 8 clinical sites, but once adding in the dental sealants program it expanded to 10 school sites and added a professional per diem dental team.  Additionally is provides funds (Blue and Health Foundation) for two mental health counselors that work over 6 school sites one of which is a non-clinical site.  MH services are are coordinated with the Guidance Care Center to ensure continuity.
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	Text55: Keys AHEC will have expended its total budget of $61,500 plus the supplement of $7,041 in the following expense categories:
89%-Salaries for direct care medical staff (Nurse Practitioners/Physician Assistants)
9%-Fringe and Taxes
2%-Electronic Health Record System (Medical Record Keeping)
	Text56: Yes all funds will be and have been expended according to budget and approved by the County Clerk's Office.  100% of all funds spent were used for direct services with no funding utilized for admin or overhead.
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	Text85: Funds provided by the HSAB allowed the Keys AHEC to put together $250,000 that was leveraged as Match to bring in the Health Foundation $100,000.   All revenue of the program was used to support direct clinical costs for the treatment of children. Additionally the State of Florida ($250K), Blue Foundation ($290K) and Monroe County School District ($65K) required local match to show community support of their grant/contract.
	Text86: The Total FY Budget for all health programs (inclusive of HSAB) is $871,500 or $810,000 in additional funds
	Text87: All funds of the program went to the following line items: Medical Staff Providers, Admin/Fiscal Mgt, Tax/Fringe, Medical Supplies/Medication, Electronic Health Record Access, Malpractice Insurance, Dental Supplies, Clinic Equipment, Contract/Per Diem Staff, Travel, Print Materials, General Office Supplies, Licensing/Permitting Fees and overhead.
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	ServiceRow8: 
	Unit hour session day etcRow8: 
	Cost per unit current yearRow8: 
	Text43: Examples of programs include:
1. 8 “No Cost” School Health Center Primary Care Clinics-Primary Care for Medically Vulnerable Children and Dental Sealants Program for 2nd and 7th Graders (Dental Treatment planned for FY 19/20)
2. Tobacco Cessation Classes and Services-No Cost NRT
3. Mental Health Assessment and Treatment-Partnered with GCC.
4. Mental Health First Aid Training
5. CHAMP-Children’s Health Assessment and Medical Program-Comprehensive Physical Examinations for Children in Daycares 
6. Other Direct Medical Services-Skin Cancer Assessments, BP/Blood Sugar Assessments, Spirometry-Lung Capacity, Diagnostic Vision and Hearing and Breast Cancer Assessments-Komen Foundation
7. CPR/First Aid Training
8.  School Based Health Education Services
9.  Healthy Aging and Fitness Classes
10. Accredited Professional Training (CME/CE)
11.  Community Health Education and Awareness Programs-Opioid Addiction in FY 18/19
12. UM/Keys AHEC Health Fair (All of Monroe County)-3 Sites
	Text31: The Keys AHEC Health Centers provide no out of pocket expense primary medical care to students of Monroe County and a no cost Dental Sealants program for Second and Seventh Graders.  
Clinics are open 5 days per week at multiple sites on all school days throughout the year.  During the summer months the clinics are open regionally 3 days per week.  Keys AHEC sees all uninsured and Medicaid patients assigned to them with denying access due to ability to pay.
The Dental Sealant and Mental Health programs follow the same clinical format and structure as the medical program, but with targeted schedules and sites served.
	Text34: Specific to this application and the health services provided by Keys AHEC the agency works with several health services agencies.  The agency has other collaborations relating to programs internally that are not part of this application such as the Tobacco Cessation and the Opioid Prevention programs.

Keys AHEC collaborates with 7 dental offices (providing 9 Hygienists and 6 Assistants), CHI-FQHC, 3 local pediatrician offices, three local hospitals (Baptist Credentials all Staff through Fishermen’s while LKMC/KPHA provides our contracting with Health Insurance Companies).  Additional agencies include WomanKind, Rotary of KW-Dental Treatment Vouchers, Good Health Clinic, Monroe County Health Department, Healthy Start Coalition, Advanced Urgent Care and the Guidance Care Center.

	Text66: The Keys AHEC Health Center program focusing on students of Monroe County does not duplicate services or overlap with any health care organizations.  The services provided focus on medically vulnerable and at risk students that otherwise do not have access to medical care or a medical home.  This normal is due to the lack of providers, health insurance or family financial resources.    Keys AHEC has a number or working relationships in the healthcare industry that include the three local hospitals, mental health institutions, private providers and social service agencies. These relationships provide access to specialty care treatment and ancillary services such as lab, x-ray and emergency services. 
Keys AHEC also provides dental sealants in the schools through a Network of 2 volunteer dentists, 9 Hygienists and 6 Assistants all working per diem from local Dentist offices.  Mental Health services provided by AHEC are in partnership with the Guidance Care Center so all staff fall under the same continuum of care.
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	For Fiscal Year 2020 how will the amount requested be utilized: Keys AHEC Health Centers will utilize requested funds to provide direct primary care medical services to medically vulnerable children that come from homes of tax paying Monroe County families.  Clinical sites will be located within 8 school sites, provided at no cost by the School Board, with Clinical staff that will be able to treat students eliminating barriers to accessing health care.  Care provision will focus on the uninsured, underinsured, Medicaid and limited access populations while not discriminating against any student due to socio-economic status.  Additionally Keys AHEC will continue to offer a dental sealants and oral health assessments program focusing on second and seventh graders throughout the county.  In FY 19/20 the agency will furthermore work on providing basic oral health treatment with a partnership with the Way Point Foundation.
	Text35: 12.45
	Text10: 1. Maintain the 8 school-based clinics to increase access to primary care, dental and mental health services.
2. Maintain days of operation at the existing Countywide school-based clinic
3. Increase the number of primary care service encounters within the program
4. Increase the number of school-based programs/services operated by Florida Keys AHEC in Monroe County.
5. Maintain 5 FTE PA/ARNPs to serve the Monroe County school-based clinics.
6. Purchase supplies and equipment needed; adjust liability insurance requirements to include new sites and staff; maintain Medical Waste and CLIA permits for new school-based clinic.
7. Conduct outreach to families of students attending schools served by the school based primary care clinics to promote availability of services.
8. Secure General Consent for Clinical Treatment forms from parents of 100% of new students accessing the school based clinics.
	Text1000: All positions are currently filled with Keys AHEC.
	Text463: 12.5
	Text465: 04/04/2019
	Text466: Benefits include Health Ins. SEP Plan, Disability and Life Insurance.  Taxes not included.


